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Corporate Profile
ATEN

China Fortune Holdings Limited (“China Fortune” or the “Group”),
formerly named Fortune Telecom Holdings Limited, mainly
distributes mobile phones and digital products in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”). The Group was established in
Hong Kong in 1992. It was first listed on the GEM Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock code: 8040) on
16th February, 2000, and then successfully shifted to the Main
Board (Stock code: 110) on 26th January, 2004. The Group
has a strong shareholder background and well operational and
professional management team.

The Group is the sole Nokia fulfilment distributor for all
Nokia Stores in the PRC. Besides, the Group owns a retail
chain in Zhuhai, the PRC for selling mobile phones and
telecommunication equipments.

In 2009, the Group acquired a Strontium mining site in the PRC,
as its first step in entering the natural resource industry.

The corporate culture of the Group rests on the integration of
the West and the East, modern and traditional management
philosophy, with an aim to build up a “Continuous Learning
Enterprise”. The corporate spirit of China Fortune focuses on
“Human Enterprise”. Under the leadership of its aspiring and
energetic management, China Fortune’s staff will team up
and move towards the Group’s goal of ranking as one of the
largest and best wireless communication and data products and
services providers in the region.
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Business Structure

E

hERERRARLTE
China Fortune
Holdings Limited

RiRR®

Fortune Resources

WERRR - B -
BRRERRE
Exploration, exploitation,
refining and asset investment
of mineral resources

LALE £

Fortune Telecom

PR Z A RENHE
i HESE Y L 25 AR 7%
Franchised distribution and
supply chain fulfillment
distribution in China

LR B S

Retail chain for

telecommunication

equipment

RERE

Fortune Investment

HBE - WEHRASEAX
EZTILRBHRRE
Diversified business
development through
investment, merger
and acquisition
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Corporate Milestones

TXER

2.18

The former trading arm of the Group — Express Fortune Limited (“EFL”) was founded
by Mr. Lau Siu Ying and his brothers in Hong Kong.
BNEEEREABREBACREERAR([RE]) - FKEAFE FHiER -

1992

1994

EFL became one of Nokia’s earliest authorised distributors in the PRC.
RENAHETKEFRHETREY 2 —-

Commenced Fortune Telecom Group’s franchise retail business in the PRC.
RhEHRREEEEECELRTEEK-

2.16

12

Listed on the GEM Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock code: 8040).
REBBRZPTEIZER £ (BRH K5 : 8040) -

A US$12 million syndicated loan was successfully arranged.
X Th & BE—1812,000,000% 7T 2 IR E B 5K

Completed the acquisition of 51% shareholdings of Synergy Pacific (Holding) Limited
(“Synergy Pacific”).
TRMERESE (ER)BRAR (RESH]) 251%K#E -

Fortune Shanghai was acknowledged by Shanghai Waigaogjiao Free Trade Zone Management
Committee as one of the best enterprises for commodity sales.
REIBEFBISRRVEERZEGERARMHERERLE L —-

A HK$160 million syndicated loan was successfully arranged.
X Th % HF— TH160,000,0007% 7T < RE B K

N

The Group has achieved a record annual sale of 2.1 million sets of mobile phones and a
record net profit over HK$60 million.
AEBATHFHE B —TEARDEEANBB S TEATHAN DL

For a consecutive year, Fortune Shanghai was again acknowledged by Shanghai
Waigaogiao Free Trade Zone Management Committee as one of the best enterprises
for commodity sales.

EBEFEF_F REIEBEEIBISBRVREEZESEREMIHEHEBLEY

— o
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Corporate Milestones
EEERE

1.26 Listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock code: 110).
RE BB ER LT (AR 110) -
9 A US$16 million syndicated loan was successfully arranged.
X2 % HF—1816,000,0003 7T Z SR E & 5K °
11 Fortune Shanghai increased its share capital from US$6 million to US$25 million.
& i# % H IR 6,000,0003 T & 11 £ 25,000,000 TT °
12 Successfully completed the acquisition of 100% shareholdings of Synergy
Technologies (Asia) Limited, and the disposal of 46% shareholdings of Synergy
Pacific.
X Th 72 X W B Synergy Technologies (Asia) Limited 2 100% % # & & R i 2145 2 46%
b -
1 Newly obtained the nationwide distributorship of Samsung mobile phones.
MG =ERBEFEITEDHE-
9 Successfully obtained the Fulfilment Distributorship for all Nokia Stores in the PRC.
RIWEBISHEMBEAEREEE X EE D HE-
2 Contracted to acquire 51% stake in Zhuhai Reminda Telecom Equipment Company
Limited (BR/8 T BB ZBARE AR A A) and completed the acquisition in October
2007.
RIABBIREMERERARBAR DA Z51%RE TR _ET-F+ ATl -
9 Formed a joint venture with TeleChoice International Limited for the Nokia fulfillment
business.
EiTeleChoice International Limitedp\ i —fHI & & AR K EHM A TR EEER -
10.18 Name changed to China Fortune Holdings Limited.
EERPBRRERERERRAA -
12.23 Completed the acquisition of 50.8% interest in Sifa Mining which has the right to

conduct mining activities in a Celestite (Strontium), Zinc and Lead mining site situated
in the Hubei Province, the PRC.

RIWEBENPEAILE —EXREA (R) HRMESETRBEIDNMEEREL
50.8%M%  ©
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Chairman’s Statement
FERES

Lau Siu Ying
EIRN 5
Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer

TEREENTE

Dear shareholders,
REVIEW

2012 was a year full of difficulties and challenges. Revenue of
our fulfillment distribution business for Nokia Stores dropped
substantially owing to the continued down turn in the market
demand for Nokia mobile phones in the year. Nokia high-end
handsets with Windows 8 system were finally launched in late
2012, but the market still needs further time to see whether
more high-end smartphone models from Nokia can turn it
around to increase its market share.

In order to diversify the business of the Group, we have been
actively looking for opportunities which will further enhance
the shareholders’ value. Since we have been in the related
mobile phone industry for decades, and the potential for mobile
phone related business development is surely enormous and
sustainable, mobile phone operating system and mobile internet
are the major key business areas the Group is interested in.

BAIRR

=l &

TE-CERBEE RHARE-FA AL
BmETEEERZXEEDHEB ZWARM
BHREDBHERZFRFERTMARBT
B-BERESRA L AED Hm T EREN
T-_FEEL ETSNTEERKERE
MEATEAHEESSMBERERLR  ©H

BERTL RATSMHE-

AEEREXBEUNZTIBRR —EREY
ERE-—TRABRREBZAK - HRAKH
EXREHREABHERTERTH NLBHE
FHBXBREARANRSERREN BHE
ERIEAGLEBHERRPE R AEBRERR
ZEBGER -



Recently, we have acquired 6.25% equity interest in Jolla
Oy which is a Finland company specialized in mobile phone
operating system development. Its coming innovative and brand
new mobile phone operating system can surely bring new impact
to the market.

For our mining business, the downturn in demand for minerals
and cyclic fluctuations in the industry have dramatically and
adversely affected our construction plan while we are in the mid-
way in developing a new mining site exploitation system. The
road ahead for our mining business won’t be straight and easy,
but full of obstacles and uncertainties. We will certainly stay the
course and solve all the problems encountered.

OPPORTUNITIES AND CHALLENGES

The world becomes even more and more challenging nowadays,
so as the mobile phone industry in the PRC. The PRC is one
of the strongest countries in terms of economic performance,
and with its huge internal consumption and room for expansion.
Though with keen competition, development potential is still
enormous. The Group will continue to strengthen our existing
relationship with the leading manufacturer to look for further
cooperation opportunities.

With a view to diversify the business of the Group, the Group is
actively looking for opportunities which will further enhance the
shareholders’ value.

APPRECIATION

Finally, | wish to sincerely thank our employees and business
partners for their continued dedication and commitment to
the Group, and | would like to express my appreciation to
our financial institutions, shareholders and investors for their
continuing supports and trust towards the Group.

Lau Siu Ying
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 26th March, 2013

Chairman’s Statement
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B ENWED T

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Financial Review

Being a fulfilment distributor for Nokia Stores in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) since 2006, our turnover continued to
drop in the same trend with Nokia in the year, leading to a loss of
HK$12.4 million incurred in this business segment, as compared
to a segment profit of HK$35.0 million in last year. For our mining
business which underwent development and construction of a
new mining exploitation system throughout the year, exploitation
of minerals was minimal. Owing to a revised forecast adopted
in the year for the valuation of mining right, an impairment loss
on mining right of HK$60.8 million was recognised in the year,
with details set out below in the section of “Overall Review of
Mining”. By offsetting with a HK$15.2 million deferred tax credit
associated with this mining right impairment, the net effect of
this impairment to the financial result in this year was HK$45.6
million. In aggregate, the Group incurred a loss of HK$69.9
million in this year, as compared to a profit of HK$11.2 million in
last year.

The Group recorded a substantial drop in the consolidated
revenue from HK$1,765.9 million in last year to HK$623.0 million
in this year. The gross profit amounted to HK$13.7 million, a
decrease when compared to the last year of HK$61.3 million.
The gross margin percentage during the year was 2.2% which
was lower than the last year of 3.5% due to the worsened gross
margin achieved in the fulfillment distribution business in this
year. The other gains and losses in this year consisted a one-off
impairment loss recognised in respect of interest in an associate
amounted to HK$0.9 million, and an impairment loss recognised
in respect of trade receivable for a customer amounted to
HK$3.3 million.

The selling and distribution costs amounted to HK$10.8 million
when compared to the last year of HK$14.9 million as the overall
revenue achieved during the year was comparably much lower
than the last year in the fulfilment distribution business for Nokia
Stores. The administrative expenses amounted to HK$27.0
million, a decrease when compared to the last year of HK$31.8
million mainly due to reduced staff number and so as the staff
costs incurred in the year.

[E] /8 & A %

B 7% bl

BT FREZTARA HEEERE
/\E/\ﬁ;ﬂ.(fEPEJ)Z@ELELE%ﬁ RE

B 2 EERNFANEERZET—RRAT &
B ¥ 75 5 5 E &£ &5 1812,400,00078 7T * i1 &
& Bl 8% 15 5 26 % F135,000,0005 7T - AN EE 2
FREBREAN—ETCER REZFEMDFRK
ES FWEEE% BB A 4F 1A Tk BR AR AR i (B R
MBI 2 TBE  FRBREERE ZBEEE
#%60,800,000/8 7T * FHIEHMN T [TEHEEE D
JBE | — &0 o $X 5K B bt BRAE AR (B AR A 2 IR AR IE
# 915,200,000/ JT 1% + & IE W B ¥ N F E 5
BEEZ FHEH45,600,0008 T 5 8:TE
7N & B R 4 [Z A 5 1869,900,0000% T ¢ i
X RI$%15 4% F11,200,00078 7T °

REE 2 izEWER EFE 21,765,900,0007%8
TLA R T Bk ZE A F [E 2623,000,00078 7T ° £ FI
#$13,700,000% 7T ' B £ & E 261,300,000/
BB FARAZENER EFEZ23.5%F
BRE22% WIBERAFERXEEDHED
CENEREEZMRB -FREMEEREEPE
B —XBE AR ERER L —KARERE
$8900,000/8 7T A EFREKR—EBREFP 2B S
KRR 2 % (A 5 18.3,300,0007% T ©

FN-HE RS HEKZA A10,800,000/ 7T Mk
F[Z B 414,900,000 70 L YR #E G E
BEEREEEDHEB 2 BRBRER LFER
ZR A o 1TBE A A27,000,0008 70 R EFE
231,800,000 TR FEZHNFANELA
R EmiRE 8 TAaA-



“E-—FH | PEREEZRERAR

Management Discussion and Analysis

As far as the mobile phone retail chain and wholesale business
in Zhuhai was concerned, the revenue achieved during the year
amounted to HK$238.7 million, increased by 447% as compared
with last year of HK$43.6 million. However, owing to the fierce
competitive business environment this retail chain facing, the
Group still shared a loss from it during this year. The Group
shared a net loss of HK$106,000 from the result of an associate
during the year as compared to a net gain of HK$5,000 in last
year. As the performance of this associate was unpromising
so far since this associate was invested by the Group, an
impairment loss was recognised in it in the year.

The finance costs decreased from HK$6.5 million in last year to
HK$1.3 million in this year. There was an interest expense for
promissory notes amounted to HK$3.9 million in last year but no
such interest incurred in this year.

The net asset value of the Group attributable to owners of the
Company as at 31st December, 2012 amounted to HK$273.8
million or HK$0.33 per share when compared to HK$314.8
million or HK$0.38 per share as at 31st December, 2011. The
basic loss per share was 5.34 Hong Kong cents as compared
to the basic earnings per share of 1.94 Hong Kong cents in last
year.

As at 31st December, 2012, the Group’s aggregate other
borrowings amounted to HK$15.4 million when compared
to HK$15.3 million as at 31st December, 2011,
maintained at a similar level.

which was

The gearing ratio of the Group, defined as the ratio of the total
long term liabilities to the shareholder’s equity, was 0.35 as at
31st December, 2011 and 2012.

EEEmED

ERRERHERTERRMMBELRFTE K
F N5 5238,700,0008 7T B EFEZ
43,600,000/ 7T _EFH447% @ EER LT EHE ~
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RIEE 2 FEIER106,0008 T - T EFEAA
F U 55,0008 7T ° B B AN 5 B A 701tk ZEE
SRAIARERR —BERWAEE - HRF AR
RAERREREIR -

REE 2 BEKA B EFE 26,500,000/ 7T
MZE1,300,0008TL LFEEAARERZAE
F1323,900,000/8 7T AN F R L EE LB 7

B o
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWED T

The total cash and cash equivalents amounted to HK$89.4
million as at 31st December, 2012 without any deposit pledged
to banks. The Group is financed by a combination of its equity
capital,
borrowings. During the year, there was no material change in the

cash flow generated from its operation and other

funding and treasury policy of the Group. The Group considers
there is no material potential currency exposure as the majority
of its revenue and expenses are derived and incurred all in
Renminbi in the PRC. It is the treasury policy of the Group to
manage its foreign currency exposure whenever its financial
impact is material to the Group.

The inventories of the Group as at 31st December, 2012
amounted to HK$32.9 million, when compared to HK$132.4
million as at 31st December, 2011, mainly since less inventories
kept for the fulfillment distribution business for Nokia Stores as
driven by a reduced turnover volume in the year. The inventory
turnover period was 34 days in this year when compared to 36
days of last year. The Group will continue to apply strict policy in
inventory control in the future.

The amount of trade and other receivables as at 31st December,
2012 was HK$45.0 million, when compared to HK$59.9
million as at 31st December, 2011. Trade receivables mainly
comprised receivables from the fulfilment distribution business
for Nokia Stores. In order to minimize the credit risk for the
trade receivables, the Group has implemented strict control on
the determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the revenue generated from
the fulfillment distribution business for Nokia Stores is mainly on
cash basis which further reduces the credit risk of the Group.

R-ZE——F+-F=+—HzBLEELSE
& ¥) 42 58 589,400,000/ 7T + M & (F 1] 17 50 &
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R TREFHEETEEERRAEEDHE
BzEERL AFEZFEREHAIMMAR M
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31st December, 2012, the Group had in total 159
employees as compared to 224 employees as at 31st
December, 2011.
the nature of their job duties and market trend. The Group
provided staff welfare and fund contribution to its employees in
accordance with the prevailing regulations in the PRC and Hong

Employees were remunerated according to

Kong. There was no material change in the remuneration policy,
bonus scheme and share option scheme during the year. The
Group has a share option scheme under which the Company
may grant share options to the participants, including directors
and employees, to subscribe for shares of the Company.

Overall Review of Mining

We commenced developing a new mining site exploitation
system in our Strontium mining site since 2010. After the
expiration of a five-year mining operating permit on 25th
September, 2012, Sifa Mining obtained a two-year renewed
one, in which Sifa Mining is restricted to exploration activities
over the mining site only. After further submissions of relevant
technical documentations to the Ministry of Land and Resources
of the PRC for fulfilling exploitation requirements, a restriction-
free mining operating permit can be renewed on or before
the expiry of this two-year permit. No material and significant
adverse effect in Sifa Mining’s operation is foreseen with this
exploitation restriction, since the mining site is undergoing the
new exploitation system construction stage without normal
exploitation activities scheduled in the relevant period, and a
further renewal of a restriction-free mining operating permit is
assessed to be procedural. However, the development plan and
construction progress in this new system had been inevitably
and adversely affected by the downturn of the global mineral
resources demand in the second half of the year and up to
the current moment. Although it is expected that the downturn
is temporary and only being a normal cyclic adjustment in
the industry, the management proceeded in a prudent way to
restructure the overall construction schedule of this new mining
system, by readjusting construction speed and time schedule for
matching the industry cycle accordingly.

EEEmED
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We engaged independent professional valuers to conduct annual
valuation review since our first recognition of this mining right
in Year 2009, which was recognised as RMB368.0 million. We
adopted the multi-period excess earning method under the
income approach since the initial recognition of this mining right
in Year 2009 and up to Year 2012, which is regarded to be the
most appropriate approach in valuing a mining operation as it
considers future growth potential of a mining asset. Discounted
cash flow (‘DCF”) analysis is applied for reaching the present
values of all future cash flows. Key assumptions and inputs
adopted in the cash flow projections were reviewed and updated
in every annual valuation process for accessing any impairment
concern in the carrying value of the mining right.

In this year, the DCF analysis adopted cash flow projection for
a period of 46 years up to 2058 (2011: 45 years up to 2056),
being the years required for full exploitation of mineral reserves.
The discount rate and growth rate adopted were 17.7% (2011:
16.46%) and 3.0% (2011: 3.22%) respectively. The recoverable
amount of the mining right was calculated to be RMB327.4
million (2011: RMB382.4 million),
carrying value of RMB367.4 million as at 31st December, 2012.
After taking together Sifa Mining’s carrying value of property,
plant and equipment amounted to RMB9.5 million together

when compared to the

into account, we took the view that the recoverable amount
of this cash-generating unit of the mining business was lower
than its carrying value at 31st December, 2012. Accordingly, a
shortfall of RMB49.5 million (equivalent to HK$60.8 million) was
recognised as impairment loss on mining right in this year. By
offsetting with a RMB12.4 million (equivalent to HK$15.2 million)
deferred tax credit associated with this mining right impairment,
the net effect of this impairment to the financial result in this year
was RMB37.1 million (equivalent to HK$45.6 million).
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We have engaged an independent professional valuer,
Cushman & Wakefield Valuation Advisory Services (HK) Limited
(“Cushman”), for their profession valuation service in this year.
The major significant change in the result of the DCF analysis in
this year was caused by the change in discount rate adopted
for computing the present values of future cash flows. After
considering the latest status of the industry and the deferred
construction progress of the new mining site exploitation system
in the mining site, Cushman imposed risk premiums into the
computation of discount rate in this year and a higher discount
rate was computed and adopted. The discount rate in this year
was 17.7%, only a bit higher than the one of 16.46% as adopted
in last year, but the discounting effect imposed by this increment
in discount rate was significant since the length of cash flow
projection was long, up to 46 years. Besides, changes in various
factors, like the re-scheduling and deferral of annual outputs of
minerals in early years of the cash flow projection after taking the
exploitation restriction in the current mining permit and recent
downturn in demand for minerals into consideration, changes
in various operating costs and changes in budgets for capital
expenditure adopted in the DCF analysis reduced cash inflows in
early years of the cash flow projection and then led to significant
reductions in total recoverable amount of the mining right
after discount. As a result, a lower recoverable amount of the
mining right as at 31st December, 2012 was computed and an
impairment loss of HK$60.8 million was recognised in this year.
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Market Overview

According to the statistics released by the Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology of the People’s Republic of China
(“MII”), there were more than 1.1 billion subscribers to mobile
phone services in the PRC as at the end of January 2013,
equivalent to a penetration rate of 82.6 users per 100 persons.
While there are continuing intense competitions among the major
mobile phone manufacturers in the PRC, they are trying to cut
the distribution layers by directly supplying to the provincial
distributors and leading retailers with a view to increase their
profitability. Because of this, leading vendors have developed
multi-channel distribution models which include “national
distribution”, “provincial distribution”, *
to operator”.

direct to retail” and “direct

As one of the integrated fulfillment distributors in the PRC, the
Group provides all necessary services, which include but not
limited to transaction handling, credit financing, delivery, rebate
execution, stock buffering and B2B system integration, etc.
In return, the Group receives a contractual margin, as well as
various rebates as its service income. This business model is
more transparent, allowing the buyers, the suppliers and the
Group to share common information and enhances the efficiency
of all the activities of the value chain.
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Business Review
Handset Distribution

Nokia, who was the biggest mobile phone manufacturer for over
a decade, lost its market share in the mobile phone industry
substantially to Apple Inc. and various brands of handsets with
the Android platform in these few years. Changes in handset
application habit of consumers turn popular handsets from
mobile-phone-based into smartphone-based. In view of this,
without launching the popular Android-based smartphone, Nokia
decided to collaborate with Microsoft Windows Phone in 2011.
Nevertheless, the market has been expecting the new Nokia
handsets with Windows 8 system long enough, and which were
eventually launched in late 2012. The market still needs further
time to see whether more high-end smartphone models from
Nokia can turn it around to increase its market share.

The Group has been a distributor of Nokia handsets since
incorporation. So the recent situation of Nokia directly and
substantially led to a downturn of revenue of the Group in the
year. The Group paid special attention and efforts in mitigating
the effect and risks in the Nokia Store fulfillment distribution
business by lowering the inventory level to a minimal amount.
The management will keep monitoring this business segment
and take timely and appropriate action when necessary.

Investment in mobile phone operating system

On 29th December, 2012, the Group subscribed a convertible
bond issued by Jolla Oy, which is a newly established company
in Finland and engaged in mobile phone operating system
development. After full conversion of the convertible bond into
shares of Jolla Oy and together with further subscriptions, the
Group acquired approximately 6.25% equity interest in Jolla Oy
with an aggregate consideration of HK$10.2 million in March
2013. Although Jolla Oy is a newly established company in
Finland, its team consists of well-experienced programmers and
developers of mobile phone operating system. Jolla Oy’s coming
innovative and brand new mobile phone operating system is
expected to bring new impact and opportunity to the market.
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Prospect and Outlook

The continued economic growth in the PRC is fuelled by a high
internal consumption. As the world’s biggest handset market,
there were more than 1.1 billion handset subscribers in the
PRC with an annual growth rate of around 10% in terms of new
subscribers and replacements. There were over 21.9% 3G users
out of the total subscribers, and forecasted to increase much
further in the near future. On the other hand, there were more
than 787 million mobile Internet users which implies that there
are huge business opportunities in both mobile application and
mobile commerce. Since the Group has been in the related
mobile phone industry for decades, mobile phone operating
system and mobile internet would be surely the key business
areas that the Group is interested in. So besides the recent
investment in Jolla Oy, the Group is actively looking for further
opportunities which will further enhance the shareholders’ value.

Besides as mentioned above for our mining business, the road
ahead for this business is not straight and easy, but full of
obstacles and uncertainties. Nevertheless, we will certainly stay
the course, solve all the problems encountered and maximize
the interest of the Group and the shareholders in it.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. LAU Siu Ying, aged 49, is the founder, Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 1992. Mr. Lau
has extensive working experiences in the telecommunications
industry for over 20 years and has established solid business
contacts in both Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Lau is responsible
for directing the Group’s overall business policy and strategies
as well as overseeing the Group’s business development in
Hong Kong and the PRC. Prior to setting up his business, Mr.
Lau worked for Hutchison Whampao Group for approximately
5 years, in charge of the business development of the
telecommunications in the PRC. Mr. Lau holds a bachelor
degree in Business Administration from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong and a Master of Science degree in Information
Technology from the National University of Ireland, Dublin.

Mr. Lau is currently the trustee in New Asia College of The
Chinese University of Hong Kong and the Board Councilor of
China Mobile Communications Association. In the aspects of
social and economic activities, Mr. Lau is devoted to promoting
economic and educational development. He served as the vice
president of the Hong Kong Association of Jieyang, the honorary
president of Shanghai Chaoshan Chamber of Commerce,
the committee member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference in Yunfu city, Guangdong province of
the PRC, Hong Kong and Macau Director of the Dongguan City
Youth Federation and the vice president of Hong Kong Island
Chaoren Association Limited.

Mr. LUO Xi Zhi, aged 55, joined the Group in October 1995
and was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in
September 2002. Mr. Luo is also the Financial Controller of the
Group’s PRC operation. Mr. Luo holds a certificate in Accounting
from the Finance Academy of Jiangxi Province. Mr. Luo has
over 20 years of financial and accounting experience in the
PRC. Prior to joining the Group in 1995, Mr. Luo was the chief
accountant for Zhaoging Sz Di Telecom Co., Ltd.
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Mr. WANG Yu, aged 47, joined the Group in April 2006 and was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in November
2009. Mr. Wang is the General Manager of a subsidiary of the
Company and in-charge of the mining business segment of the
Company. Mr. Wang graduated from Xi’an Jiaotong University
with a master degree and a bachelor degree in Computer
Science. Mr. Wang has more than 10 years working experiences
in channel and distribution management on computer products
and mobile phones with local and multinational companies in
the PRC. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang was a General
Manager of a listed company in the PRC focusing on IT
business.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHANG Wing Seng, Victor, aged 75, last held the position
of Managing Director of APCG Business Pte. Limited. Prior
to this, Mr. Chang was the Managing Director of Singapore
Technologies Telecommunications (Beijing) Pte. Ltd. based
in Beijing for 2 years. Mr. Chang had held various senior
management positions over 25 years with the Singapore
Technologies Group, mainly as the Director of Finance. Mr.
Chang was a graduate in Accounting from the Royal Melbourne
Institute of Technology, Melbourne, Australia and the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in Australia. Mr. Chang had also
completed the Program for Management Development at the
Harvard University Graduate School of Business Administration.
Mr. Chang was a certified public accountant in both Singapore
and Australia. Mr. Chang was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in October 1999.

Mr. WONG Lit Chor, Alexis, aged 54, graduated from the
University of Toronto, Canada in 1981 with a bachelor degree
in Arts majoring in economics and commerce and has obtained
a master degree in Business Administration from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1987. Mr. Wong has over 30 years
of banking, investment, corporate finance and securities dealing
experience gained from working as a senior executive in a
number of listed local and PRC financial services companies.
Mr. Wong is also an independent non-executive director of a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong. Mr. Wong was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in September 2006.
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Dr. LAW Chun Kwan, aged 47, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in June
2012. Dr. Law has extensive working experience in various
business fields including advertising, telecommunications,
information technology and real estate development in both
Hong Kong and the PRC. Dr. Law is presently engaged in
real estate development business in the PRC. Dr. Law holds a
bachelor degree of social science from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong, a master degree of e-business and a doctorate
degree of business administration in information systems from
the Edith Cowan University, Western Australia.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LAM Man Kit, aged 37, was appointed as the Company
Secretary of the Company in February 2010. Mr. Lam is also
the Financial Controller of the Group and the authorised
representative of the Company. Mr. Lam graduated with a
bachelor degree of Business Administration from the University
of Hong Kong and is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Prior to joining
the Group in January 2007, Mr. Lam has years of financial and
audit experiences in Hong Kong and the PRC.

BRHEL 475 RS- AEZEEA
RRRZBUFAITES -BIELTRPEZE
NELBEYELR HPREES i &
AREEEHERESZ BETRUEIEE
MEREES BEITHEEBERINARENLSE
RleEaea4 gy - A R AR 78R N A Edith Cowan
AENEFEEFETELMRIFEREL (B
ARG B

DNAMWE

MBRE 37 R —SF_ARZER
ARBZABME - MAEEL RANKEZ
BERARTRZERAR -MAEERBTBAE
EX FAIREEETEU IRFFRRE
AR CEREBREBAGHMAGEE -
MAER-ZTLEF-AMBAKERN &F
BRTEEE S FMEMZEBER -

g



22

China Fortune Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2012

Corporate Governance Report
TEERHREE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance with a view to assuring the integrity,
transparency and quality of disclosure to protect the interests
of all shareholders. The Company’s corporate governance
practices are based on the principles and code provisions
(“Code Provisions”) set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Former CG Code”) which was
subsequently revised as the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Revised CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and came into full effect
on 1st April, 2012.

During the year ended 31st December, 2012, the Company has
complied with most of the Code Provisions of the Former CG
Code for the period from 1st January, 2012 to 31st March, 2012
and of the Revised CG Code for the period from 1st April, 2012
to 31st December, 2012, except for the deviations as stated in
paragraph headed “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” and
“Re-election of Directors”.

The Board will continuously review and improve the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company to ensure
the business activities and decision making processes are
regulated in a proper and prudent manner.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for securities
transactions by Directors of the Company during the year under
review.

Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, each of whom
has confirmed that he has complied with the required standard
as set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31st December,
2012. The Model Code also applies to other specified senior
management of the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Overall accountability

Members of the Board are individually and collectively
accountable to the shareholders for the success and sustainable
development of the Company. The Board provides direction
and approval in relation to matters concerning the Company’s
business strategies, policies and plans whilst the day-to-
day business operations are delegated to the executive
management. The Board is accountable to the shareholders
and in discharging its corporate accountability, every Director of
the Company is required to pursue excellence in the interests
of the shareholders and fulfill his fiduciary duties by applying
the required level of skills, care and diligence to a standard in
accordance with the statutory requirements.

Board composition

The Board currently comprises three Executive Directors and
three Independent Non-Executive Directors of whom all are
independent as defined under the Listing Rules. Independent
Non-executive Directors constitute more than one-third of the
Board. The Company has received from each Independent Non-
executive Director an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and considers that all Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent. To the best knowledge
of the Company, there is no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship among the members of the Board.
Brief biographical particulars of the Directors are set out on
pages 19 to 21.

Re-election of directors

All Non-executive Directors of the Company are not appointed
for a specific term as stipulated under the provision A.4.1 of the
Revised CG Code but are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws. In accordance with
the relevant provisions in the Bye-laws of the Company, if the
appointment of Directors is made by the Board, the Directors
so appointed must stand for election by the shareholders at the
first annual general meeting following their appointments and all
Directors, except the Chairman, must stand for re-election by
the shareholders by rotation. Separate resolutions are proposed
for the election of each director.
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Nomination of directors

Prior to the establishment of the Nomination Committee, the
Board determined the nomination and appointment of new
directors having regard to the relevant skills and experience
of the proposed new directors. On 27th February, 2012, the
Company established a nomination committee, details of which
are set out below. During 2012, one new Director has been
selected, recommended and appointed for directorship.

Board responsibilities and delegation

The Board collectively determines the overall strategies of the
Company, monitors performance and the related risks and
controls in pursuit of the strategic objectives of the Company.
Day-to-day management of the Company is delegated to the
Executive Directors or the officer in charge of each division
and function who is required to report back to the Board.
Functions reserved to the Board and those delegated to
management are reviewed periodically. All Board members have
separate and independent access to the senior management,
and are provided with full and timely information about the
conduct of the business and development of the Company,
including monthly reports and recommendations on significant
matters. Should separate independent professional advice be
considered necessary by the Directors or any Board Committee,
independent professional services would be made available to
the Directors or such Board Committee upon request. The Board
has delegated some of its functions to the Board Committees,
details of which are set out below. Matters specifically reserved
for the Board include approval of financial statements, dividend
policy, significant changes in accounting policies, material
contracts, significant appointments such as Company Secretary
and external auditor, terms of reference of Board Committees, as
well as major corporate policies.

To implement the strategies and plans approved by the Board,
Executive Directors and senior management meet on a regular
basis to review the performance of the Group and make
financial and operational decisions. The Company has arranged
appropriate insurance cover on directors and officers liability for
its directors and officers.

Details of the responsibilities, membership, attendance and
activities during the year of each Board Committee are set out
on pages 27 to 32.
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Board meetings and attendance

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Company and to discuss future strategy.
Five Board meetings were held in 2012. At the Board meetings,
the Board reviewed significant matters including the Company’s
annual and interim financial statements, proposals for final and
interim dividends (if any), annual report and half-year report. At
least 14 days’ notice is given to all Directors for all regular Board
meetings and all Directors are given the opportunity to include
matters for discussion in the agenda. All minutes of the Board
meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are available
to all Directors for inspection. During the year, the Chairman of
the Company has held a meeting with all the Independent Non-
executive Directors without other Executive Directors presented.
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The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings in

2012 is set out below:

Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Chairman)
Mr. Luo Xi Zhi

Mr. Wang Yu

Non-executive Director
Mr. Fung Qi Ip, Alfonso
(resigned on 5th June, 2012)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis
Mr. Chen Yi Gang
(resigned on 5th June, 2012)
Dr. Law Chun Kwan
(appointed on 5th June, 2012)

R-F——F ZEFHREFTE SR IR

HolmT -
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
HE/
o= YN
HITES
BINEEE (F/E) 5/5
BBZkRE 4/5
EREE 4/5
FHITES
HEELE
(RZZT—ZFARBEME) 1/1
BYKHITES
EPok sk 5/5
|mAUMEE 5/5
PR 7T Wl 55 4
(RZZT—ZFARHEMT) 11
&R imiE +
(RZZE—ZF~AFAEEM) 4/4
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Chairman and chief executive officer

Provision A.2.1 of the Revised CG Code stipulates that the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual but Mr. Lau Siu
Ying currently assumes both roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.

Provision A.4 of the Revised CG Code states that all directors
should be subject to re-election at regular intervals. However, Mr.
Lau Siu Ying, being the Chairman of the Board, does not need to
retire by rotation.

Mr. Lau Siu Ying has been in charge of the overall management
of the Company since its incorporation. As a result, although he
does not need to retire by rotation and assumes both roles of
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
the Board considers that such arrangement at the Group’s
current stage of development can facilitate the execution of the
Group’s business strategies and maximize the effectiveness of
its operations. Nevertheless, through the supervision from the
Board including the Independent Non-executive Directors, the
interests of the shareholders should be adequately and fairly
considered.

Directors’ continuing professional development

Each newly appointed director is provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as
well as his responsibilities under the relevant statutes, laws, rules
and regulations.

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the year,
Directors are provided with monthly updates on the Company’s
performance, position and prospects to enable the Board
as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.
In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The Company updates Directors on
the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.
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During the year, the Company organized one in-house seminar
conducted by Listco Professional Services Limited for Directors
which covered the topics of notifiable transactions under
Chapter 14 and the Revised CG Code under Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules.

According to the records provided by the Directors, a summary
of training received by the Directors since 1st April, 2012 up to
31st December, 2012 is as follows:

TXRERBES

FAARBRECRFELTRAREERBAER D
AREERET - RAABMNE ARBELD
RABUEZATLMR SR EHRAK 14
ZRBIERTREERTA

REREERHECEE EEB-_F—_F0A
THES=T—=F = H="1"HEERZN
Iz BRI T -

Attending
seminars
Directors - HEME
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Lau Siu Ying Bl NELE Yes B
Mr. Luo Xi Zhi BB2HRHE Yes B
Mr. Wang Yu TREE Yes B
Independent Non-executive Directors BYKBITES
Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor 05K B St & Yes B
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis =R EE Yes &
Dr. Law Chun Kwan R LT Yes B
Note: Mr. Fung Oi Ip, Alfonso and Mr. Chen Yi Gang resigned during MEE . IS ER 2% A R IR S A P F A BHE - B0 A
the year and no records were received from them. FRARE R
BOARD COMMITTEES EEZES

The Board has established three committees to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist in the
execution of the Board’'s responsibilities. Sufficient resources
are provided to enable the Board Committees to undertake their
specific roles. The respective role, responsibilities and activities
of each Board Committee are set out below:

EXEERVU=AZEE AEEBARASE
BRHERE YHHTEFSELT - EFZ
EeeRRHERNERBTERERAE 88
ER8ezHBEAG BEEREDHIINT:
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Remuneration committee

The principal role of the Remuneration Committee is to
determine and review the remuneration packages of individual
executive directors and senior management, including salaries,
bonuses, share options and other plans. The Remuneration
Committee reviews and approves the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives and considers salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group, so as to align
management incentives with shareholders’ interests.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors and an Executive Director.
The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Chang
Wing Seng, Victor, an Independent Non-executive Director. The
Company Secretary of the Company serves as the secretary
of the committee. Minutes for the meetings are sent to the
committee members within a reasonable time after the meetings.
The full terms of reference are available on the Company’s
website and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s
website.

The composition of the Remuneration Committee during the year
as well as the meeting attendance of the committee members
are as follows:

HHWESE

FHEZE e T EZACRETE LENERRT
EXMAREEABZHHGE BRFE
e BRERAEMAHE - FHEEEL2RES
SZhEBERRENENRERLERABZH
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A o

FHZEERFRZEARRETZBEKRELE
ERIBERWT

Membership and Attendance REREERR
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
HE
Members g=] TR
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHITES
Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor (Chairman) Bk s (F/E) 2/2
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis XL A 2/2
Dr. Law Chun Kwan EIRE L
(appointed on 1st November, 2012) (RZE2—=F+—A—HEZE) 0/0
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Fung Oi Ip, Alfonso HEELE
(resigned on 5th June, 2012) (RZE—Z—F XA D BEE) 11
Executive Director HTESE
Mr. Lau Siu Ying 2NELAE
(appointed on 5th June, 2012) (RZZE—=—FNARAHEZE) 1/1



Corporate Governance Report

Two meetings were held in the year in which the Remuneration
Committee reviewed the remuneration policies and approved
the salaries and bonuses of the Executive Directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee has communicated
with the Chairman of the Company about proposals relating to
the remuneration packages of other Executive Directors and
senior management.

Details of directors’ emoluments and retirement benefits are
disclosed on page 111. Remuneration payable to members of
senior management is disclosed on page 136. Share options
granted under the Company’s share option plan are disclosed
on pages 129 to 131.

Audit committee

The Audit Committee reviews financial information of the Group,
monitors the effectiveness of the external audit and oversees
the appointment, remuneration and terms of engagement of
the Company’s external auditor, as well as their independence.
The Audit Committee is also responsible for reviewing the
financial reporting process and the system of internal controls
and risk management. The Board also delegated corporate
governance functions to the Audit Committee, including the
review and monitoring of (a) the development and review of the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
recommendations; (b) the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management; (c) the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; (d) the code of conduct of the
Company; and (e) the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and its compliance with the Revised CG
Code and disclosures in the Corporate Governance Report.
The full terms of reference setting out the committee’s authority
and its role and responsibilities are available on the Company’s
website and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s
website.
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The Audit Committee currently consists of three Independent
Non-executive Directors, with one of whom having the relevant
professional qualifications and expertise. The Chairman of
the Audit Committee is Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor, an
Independent Non-executive Director. The Company Secretary
acts as secretary of the Audit Committee. Sufficient resources
are made available to the Audit Committee when independent
legal or professional advice is required.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year. The external
auditors of the Company are invited to the meetings, take part
in the discussions and answer questions from the committee
members. By invitation of the Audit Committee, other Directors
and senior executives may also attend the meetings.

The Audit Committee held two meetings in the year with full
attendance by the committee members and the external auditors
of the Company as well. The Company Secretary prepared
full minutes of the audit committee meetings with details of
discussions and decisions reached. The draft and final versions
of minutes were sent to all committee members within a

reasonable time after each meeting.

The composition of the Audit Committee during the year as well
as the meeting attendance of the committee members are as

ERZEeRRh-2BYFNTESTER
HP - AREHBBEXREBERNE -BEZEER
CEFERBUFATESTH KB LEE RAM
EHEERZEQNE -BERRBOREHRE
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ERREBEEFRIBITMARHE -ARAZ
SNEZBMERLEER 2REMREEER
Bl ERM -EMEZRSRITRAEIRA
REZZESHERLFESH -

BEREZEERNFAERTMASE 288
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follows:
Membership and Attendance RERHERER
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
HE S
Members &8 =N
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYKHITES
Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor (Chairman) ok Bk (F ) 2/2
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis =R L& 2/2
Dr. Law Chun Kwan EiRiE T
(appointed on 5th June, 2012) (RZE——FAhBHEZMT) 11
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Fung Oi Ip, Alfonso HEELE
(resigned on 5th June, 2012) (RZZE—Z—FNARHEEMT) 1/1
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During the year, the Audit Committee has discussed with the
external auditor their independence and the nature and scope of
the audit; reviewed the interim and annual financial statements
of the Group, particularly judgmental areas, before submission
to the Board; reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group, findings and management’s response;
reviewed the Group’s adherence to the code provisions in the
Revised CG Code. The Audit Committee recommended the
Board to adopt the interim and annual financial statements for
2012. The Audit Committee has also performed the aforesaid
corporate governance duties as delegated to it by the Board.

Nomination committee

The Board established a Nomination Committee on 27th
February, 2012. The Nomination Committee is authorised by the
Board to determine the policy for the nomination of Directors, to
set out the nomination procedures and the process and criteria
adopted to select and recommend candidates for directorship.
The Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, and assessing the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises five members,
a majority of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors
and is chaired by the Chairman of the Board. The Company
Secretary of the Company serves as secretary of the
Nomination Committee. Minutes for the meetings are sent to
the Nomination Committee members within a reasonable time
after the meetings. The full terms of reference are available on
the Company’s website and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited’s website.
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The composition of the Nomination Committee during the year REZEERNFACEKNKREZEGKELE
as well as the meeting attendance of the committee members EEIEBERAT
are as follows:

g

II]]

Membership and Attendance REREHERER
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
HE/
Members 8 =
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Chairman) Rl NERE () 1/
Mr. Wang Yu FREE 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHITES
Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor B oK B e A& 1/1
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis H5RHEE 1/1
Mr. Chen Yi Gang BR I3 W 5% A
(resigned on 5th June, 2012) (R=F—=—FNARHEEMT) 1/1
Dr. Law Chun Kwan RIRE A+
(appointed on 5th June, 2012) (RZE——FFEHBEZT) 0/0
A meeting was held in the year, in which members of the REZEERFABRIT - REHE TLEK

Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and EEERESTCRE AERMAMK-
composition of the Board.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL BEERUMERRAREZER
STATEMENTS
The Directors acknowledged the responsibilities for preparing EEANRAAEREEELAAMRBAR

the financial statements which give a true and fair view of the HMEBARMR 2B R *E °$§§5(Efﬁ§§’ﬁa$ﬂ
affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries. The auditors are BHEEZHASE M BBRRERNLERE L
responsible to form an independent opinion, based on their BERo

audits, on the Group’s financial statements and express their

opinions.

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect to the NEZEMREEE—_S——F+=-_A=+—H
financial statements for the year ended 31st December, 2012 IEFEMBRRBFREZEEENRFL9EFE50
are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 49 to BB ZEM®mE -

50.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

BDO Limited was re-appointed as the Company’s external
auditors by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on
28th May, 2012, until the conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting. They are primarily responsible for providing audit
services in connection with the financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31st December, 2012. During the year, the
fees charged to the accounts of the Group for BDO Limited’s
statutory audit services amounted to HK$820,000 (2011:
HK$819,000). In addition, HK$38,000 was charged for non-audit
service, which was for interim review service (2011: Nil).

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year, Mr. Lam Man Kit, the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of the Company, undertook over 15 hours
of professional training to update his skills and knowledge in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of internal
controls of the Company and for reviewing its effectiveness.
The Board is committed to implementing an effective and
sound internal controls system to safeguard the interest of
shareholders and the Group’s assets. The Board has delegated
to the management the implementation of the system of
internal controls and to the Audit Committee the review of all
relevant financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management function within an established framework.
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CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company is committed to high standard of business ethics
and integrity. A code of conduct is enforced on all employees
of the Group. The employees at all levels are expected to act in
an honest, diligent and responsible manner. No personal gifts or
other forms of advantages from any person or organization doing
business with the Group can be accepted by any employee.
Business partners and customers are reminded from time to
time that our policy forbids any employee or agent of the Group
from accepting any gift from them.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers effective communication with
shareholders is essential to enable them to have a clear
assessment of the Group’s performance as well as
accountability of the board of directors. Major means of
communication with shareholders of the Company are as
follows:

Information disclosure on corporate website

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information
about the Group to all interested parties as widely and timely
as possible. The Company maintains a corporate website at
www.fortunetele.com where important information about the
Group’s activities and corporate matters such as annual reports
and interim reports to shareholders, announcements, business
development and operations, corporate governance practices
and other information is available for review by shareholders and
other stakeholders. When announcements are made through the
website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the same
information will be made available on the Company’s website.
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General meetings with shareholders

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a useful
platform for direct communication between the Board and
shareholders. Separate resolutions are proposed on each
substantially separate issue at the general meetings.

The 2012 annual general meeting (2012 AGM”) was held on
28th May 2012. The attendance record of the Directors at the
2012 AGM is set out below:

TXERBES

BRAE

ARRZBRBAFARGRBFE—EHERFE &
E=QHEPRERBERE- NRRAGLERE
BARBEBYZFHEZBIIRESR

B _HFRERAFRE ([ ZE——FRKERA
EXxe | )BER=-ZE——FERA=-+/\HEFT-
EEHE-_T——FREBFARS ZLH5HT

AT
Attendance/
Number of
general meetings
HE
Directors g% RER K& IRE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Chairman) Bl NERE () 11
Mr. Luo Xi Zhi BEBZRE 0/1
Mr. Wang Yu FREE 0/1
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Fung Oi Ip, Alfonso BEELE
(resigned on 5th June, 2012) (R=ZE——F<AABET) 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BYKHITES
Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor Bl oK 5 7 A& 1/1
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis EHRYEAE 1/1
Mr. Chen Yi Gang Bk I W 55 A
(resigned on 5th June, 2012) (R=ZZE——F<AABET) 0/1
Dr. Law Chun Kwan EiRiE LT
(appointed on 5th June, 2012) (RZZE—Z=ZFAHEEEZE) 0/0

The Company’s external auditor also attended the 2012 AGM.
In respect of the Code Provision A.6.7 of the Revised CG Code,
Mr. Chen Yi Gang, a previous Independent Non-executive
Director, was unable to attend the 2012 AGM as he had other
engagements on that day.
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Investor relations

The Company recognises its responsibility to explain its
activities to those with a legitimate interest and to respond to
their questions. Questions received from the general public and
individual shareholders are answered promptly. In all cases, great
care is taken to ensure that no price-sensitive information is
disclosed selectively.

Shareholders’ rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders
of the Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the
mandatory disclosure requirement under Paragraph O of the
Revised CG Code:

Convening of a special general meeting on requisition by
shareholders

Pursuant to clause 58 of the Company’s bye-laws, a special
general meeting may be convened by the Board upon requisition
by any shareholder holding not less than one-tenth of the
issued share capital of the Company and the securities being
held carrying the right of voting at any general meetings of the
Company. The shareholder shall make a written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company at the
head office address of the Company, specifying the shareholding
information of the shareholder, his/her contact details and the
proposal regarding any specified transaction/business and its
supporting documents.

The Board shall arrange to hold such general meeting within two
(2) months after the receipt of such written requisition. Pursuant
to clause 59 of the Company’s bye-laws, the Company shall
serve requisite notice of the general meeting, including the time,
place of meeting and particulars of resolutions to be considered
at the meeting and the general nature of the business.

If within twenty one (21) days of the receipt of such written
requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene such special
general meeting, the shareholder shall do so pursuant to the
provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (the “Act”).
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings by shareholders

Shareholders are requested to follow the Act for including
a resolution at an annual general meeting of the Company
(“AGM”). The requirements and procedures are set out below:

(i)

(i)

(i)

Pursuant to section 79 of the Act, shareholder(s) holding
() not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights
of all shareholders having the right to vote at the general
meeting; or (ii) not less than 100 shareholders, can submit a
written request stating the resolution intended to be moved
at the AGM or a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at a particular
general meeting.

The written request/statements must be signed by the
shareholder(s) concerned and deposited at the Company’s
registered office and/or principal office in Hong Kong, for
the attention of the Company Secretary, not less than six
weeks before the AGM in the case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution and not less than one week before the
general meeting in the case of any other requisition.

Pursuant to section 80 of the Act, if the written request is

in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board (i) to
include the resolution in the agenda for the AGM; or (i) to
circulate the statement for the general meeting, provided
that the shareholder(s) concerned have deposited a sum
of money reasonably determined by the Board sufficient
to meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of
the resolution and/or circulating the statement submitted
by the shareholder(s) concerned in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all the registered shareholders. On
the contrary, if the requisition is invalid or the shareholder(s)
concerned have failed to deposit sufficient money to
meet the Company’s expenses for the said purposes, the
shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this outcome
and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be
included in the agenda for the AGM or the statement will
not be circulated for the general meeting.
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(iv)

RN
BERARES

If a shareholder, who is duly qualified to attend and vote at
the general meeting convened to deal with appointment/
election of director(s), wishes to propose a person (other
than the shareholder himself/herself) for election as a
director at that meeting, he/she can deposit a written
notice at the Company’s registered office and/or its
principal office in Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Company Secretary, not less than seven (7) clear days but
not more than fourteen (14) clear days before the date of
the general meeting. In order for the Company to inform
all Shareholders of that proposal, the written notice must
state the full name of the person proposed for election
as a director, his/her biographical details as required by
rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed by the
shareholder concerned and that person indicating his/her
willingness to be elected.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns

to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose

contact details are as follows:

The Company Secretary

China Fortune Holdings Limited

Room 1505-07, Tower A, Regent Centre, 63 Wo Yi Hop Road,
Kwai Chung, Hong Kong

Email: info@chinafortune.com

Tel No.: +852 2422 0811

Fax No.: +852 2428 0988

The

Company Secretary shall forward the shareholders’

enquiries and concerns to the Board and/or relevant board
committees of the Company, where appropriate, to answer the
shareholders’ questions.
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The directors present their annual report and audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
December, 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries and principal associate
are set out in notes 38 and 39 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st Decemober,
2012 are set out in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 51 of the annual report.

No interim dividend was declared during the year. The directors
do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note
29 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to shareholders as at 31st December, 2012 and
31st December, 2011 consisted of contributed surplus and
accumulated profits were nil.
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Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@) it is, or would after payment be, unable to pay its liabilities

as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital

and share premium accounts.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date

of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Chairman)
Mr. Luo Xi Zhi
Mr. Wang Yu

Non-executive director

Mr. Fung Qi Ip, Alfonso (resigned on 5th June, 2012)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor

Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis

Mr. Chen Yi Gang (resigned on 5th June, 2012)

Dr. Law Chun Kwan (appointed on 5th June, 2012)

In accordance with clause 86(2) of the Company’s bye-laws, Dr.
Law Chun Kwan shall retire at the forthcoming annual general

meeting and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

In accordance with clause 87 of the Company’s bye-laws,
Messers. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis shall retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer himself for re-

election.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,

other than statutory compensation.
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The term of office of each of the non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors is the date up to his
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s bye-
laws.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31st December, 2012, the interests and short positions of
the directors, the chief executive and their associates in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Future Ordinance (“SFO”)), which were required to be notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Name of director Capacity

EEfE )
Mr. Lau Siu Ying (“Mr. Lau”)
BI/NELEAE ([B15%E]D) EREETERR (M)

Beneficial owner
EnlEAA

Held by a discretionary trust (Note)
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BARRZARMAIARFESERZB L

EERTHARAROREBRRG 2
B

RZE—ZF+_A=+—H EF 1THEXK
&Tﬁ%ﬂHP%AEAZ’K@j&ﬁ@ BEE (EER
BHERIAEGG ([FHRBAEERG]) EXVEL)
ZH%})SUEEQH%}EP%ﬁﬁb\*ﬁﬁ““?ﬁ%&ﬁﬂaﬂx
BIEXVHETRESH MG RN REBHE
REGFBRAF ([BR]) MERRAE (B2
ERFRIBEF MG KB @ik imE fEk
RIEMB 2R RKE) + HELARRDRIR
TJ*“ %&Hﬂiﬂlﬂﬁu%BSZMTEZ%&E%E’J%

RxRE: HBRBEEA LT AR ERETH
%?&%Z’f?‘/ Al (MEEFAD Mg ARRAm Rk
BT TR ROR B IR

AR EEKREEO.10E T ZEEKR

Percentage of
Number of the issued share

issued ordinary capital of

shares held the Company
FBE®T (A RAERT
EBEREAE RAEABDLL
188,300,013 22.92%
259,996,285 31.64%
448,296,298 54.56%
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Note: Bt 5E -

These shares are held by Future 2000 Limited, a company incorporated ZERMAEREE XS FMAK 2 A \)Future
in the British Virgin Islands which in turn is held by a discretionary trust, 2000 Limited$$ %5 @ Mz A al A X A BRI%L 4 - i
the beneficiaries of which include Mr. Lau, his spouse and his children. BREAETFEZNEEEERE

The interest disclosed above represents long positions in the X BEREASERN QRS EAR AR 2 KRG
shares and underlying shares of the Company or its associated KRB OB E -
corporations.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, chief executives BREXHEBEEINTE 2 RITHAB REEH
nor their associates had any interests or short positions in BARZE——F+-_A=+—HHEEEX
any shares or underlying shares of the Company or any of ANAIKEFEMEBEE (EEREFLHAERK
its associated corporations as defined in the SFO at 31st B AR AR S AR AR D 2 R A B o
December, 2012.
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SHARE OPTIONS BB AR e

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in RATIEBREZ 2 BEH NG B HRERN
note 30 to the consolidated financial statements. The following 0 - TEBWEAATIEREEAN 28 :
table discloses movements in the Company’s share options

during the year:

Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding
Exercise  at beginning during at end of
Date of grant price of the year the year the year
Rt A TEE FHAEKTHE ERERY SFRERTE
HK$
BT
Category | - Directors
FIFE-EE
Mr. Lau 7.5.2007 1.29 2,000,000 (2,000,000) =
gx4E
Mr. Luo Xi Zhi 7.5.2007 1.29 100,000 (100,000) -
BEZRHE
Mr. Wang Yu 7.5.2007 1.29 300,000 (300,000) =
TREE
Mr. Fung Oi Ip, Alfonso * 7.5.2007 1.29 150,000 (150,000) -
BBEREE
Mr. Chang Wing Seng, Victor 7.5.2007 1.29 200,000 (200,000) -
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis 7.5.2007 1.29 100,000 (100,000) =
BAUDRE
Mr. Chen Yi Gang * 7.5.2007 1.29 100,000 (100,000) =
B IR 5 A=
Total for directors 2,950,000 (2,950,000) -
F3ms
Category Il - Employees
FNE-ER
Employees 7.5.2007 1.29 1,346,000 (1,346,000) -
ES
Category Ill - Consultants
FINE-EH
Consultants 7.5.2007 1.29 3,950,000 (3,950,000) =
El5
Total for all categories 8,246,000 (8,246,000) -

B BRI st

*  Resigned during the year R 78 4 & (T
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ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR BERORELETH
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme disclosed above, at no M R 2 BB AT B AN o B R (L AR] B
time during the year was the Company, its holding company or AAT-HEZER AR SKEMHE A HER2E
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable FA L BEARARIEEREE AKNAD G
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of FRIEMEIABE RN EEMER -5 -
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or WEZRBRAMISHR I FENERNMEES
any other body corporate. None of the directors, their spouses FRIA]RERNNBEFESEZ2ERN AL ITEE
or children under the age of 18 had any rights to subscribe for % EREF) o

the securities of the Company or had exercised any such rights

during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF EENEARGHARBERG2ES
SIGNIFICANCE AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

No connected transactions nor contracts of significance ARAREEBMEN KRR HIZERA B S E(]
to which the Company, its holding company or any of its MHEB A RN FREFENERBFEREE I 28
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company RERBEREHNHTHEEENHEE R ER-
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at

the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERRK

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the RBANBIIRIEZE S LB E G0 F£336(5FTE
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, as at EIEREEZMI R R-2ZE——F+=-8
31st December, 2012, the following shareholders had notified —+—HB AATERXRTIRREEAATDE
the Company of relevant interests in the issued share capital of TR AR EE B -

the Company.

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company KAGEREEHO.10/8 T2 ZHE R

Percentage of
Number of the issued share

Name of issued ordinary capital of
substantial shareholder Capacity shares held the Company
FBE®RT (HEARXAERT
FERRER &4 ZBERHE REZBD L
Mr. Lau Held by a discretionary trust (Note 1) 188,300,013 22.92%
2kE rREREEA (M)
Beneficial owner 259,996,285 31.64%
EnfERA
448,296,298 54.56%
Mr. Lee Wai, Timothy Held by controlled entity (Note 2) 188,300,013 22.92%
FEELE et ERsa (ME2)
Ms. Lei Yuting Beneficial owner 51,000,000 6.21%
EW=/E ERnfEAA
Notes: B3 -

1. These shares are held by Future 2000 Limited, a company 1. ZERMBERBEZESFMK 2 2A0]

incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which in turn is held by Future 2000 Limited# A ' Mz AR H—2#E
a discretionary trust. The beneficiaries of the discretionary trust EEE ZEHEETEZITEABER L HED
include Mr. Lau, his spouse and his children. BRHEFL-

2. Under the SFO, Mr. Lee Wai, Timothy is deemed to have interests 2. BEBELDBERG BARAZELEEEER

in the shares of the Company as he is entitled to exercise more Future 2000 Limited 2 RE X E1TE =92 — M
than one-third of the voting power at general meetings of Future FRER BB AEBEEERRNRIRMDEZ -

2000 Limited.
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APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive
directors are independent.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the year ended 31st December, 2012:

(1) The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers and the largest customer represent
approximately 15.1% and 4.0%, respectively, of the
Group’s total revenue;

(2) The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers and the largest supplier represent
approximately 97.9% and 53.3%, respectively, of the
Group’s total purchase.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of
a director or a shareholder of the Company which to the
knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, had a beneficial interest in any
of the Group’s five largest suppliers and customers.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Save as disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 22 to 38 of this annual report, the Company has complied
throughout the year with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices and the Corporate Governance Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules which were then in force during
the respective periods.

Detailed information on the Company’s corporate governance
practices is also set out in the Corporate Governance Report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by
the Remuneration Committee having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme is set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT EHLNRERE

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout RARIREZ — B _F F=H= = Hil=E

the year ended 31st December, 2012. EA—EBEH#FEEHNARERE -
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD HREIEEIE

No material significant events occurred after the reporting NEREAB L AR LEEAREIR -
period.

AUDITOR =B Em

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting AARBRBRREFAS LIREEFEB B LE
of the Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the ERESMEFAMARARBANR T ZER 2

Company. Shixgeo
On behalf of the Board REEZD
Lau Siu Ying 21/ &
CHAIRMAN +/E

Hong Kong, 26th March, 2013 BB ZE—=F=H=+/XH
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|IBDO

EEE : +852 2218 8288
{5H : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

B M % AN

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
HEETHEPI1115E
Tk &HI254%

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA FORTUNE HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Fortune Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 51 to 142, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31st December, 2012, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.
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RERBLEEARMINBEAMBRE XL
REHERSREZEEAMBRRALEZA
PEEHE  MEHGRAMBRRIFEHRNUFR
SRR BBz B A RERA
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BB zEE
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BHB/RERBR URBREARE(RAE 8
OIRER E BRI E < BRULIAIN RITZHE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
R % TR

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’'s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31st December, 2012 and of the Group’s loss and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Ng Wai Man

Practising Certificate Number: P05309
26th March, 2013

ATOREBEFESFMASEMBEETE
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEEEBAR

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE—F——F+_A=+—HIFE

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and losses

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of mining right

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Share of result of an associate

(Loss)/profit before income tax
Income tax credit

(Loss)/profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations

Total comprehensive income for
the year

(Loss)/profit for the year
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
basic and diluted

Notes

B

- %
§H & Ak AR

E7
H g A
H b s M B 1R 8
HE R KA
THEHM
AR 9
FLER TR TE R 2R EE R

| w7
HE KK B AR 2 ks
DE—RBERRZEEA 18

BRFTSRAT (B51R) %5
Frisfik e 10

FE(EBR), /& 11(a)
H 2 mlA

HBINEBIREMELZ
ERER

FEE2EAKRA

IEFE (BR),8h

AREHEE A
IR HI MRS

FEAR 2 AU A

ZA/NSIE SN
TR I 1 HE 25

R (EE) B
EAREE 15

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FE T
623,049 1,765,862
(609,374) (1,704,539)
13,675 61,323
6,352 7,069
(5,059) (4,016)
(10,847) (14,885)
(26,982) (31,823)
(1,340) (6,535)
(60,847) =
= 2

(106) 5
(85,154) 11,140
15,215 15
(69,939) 11,155
4,025 22,022
4,025 22,022
(65,914) 33,177
(43,872) 15,922
(26,067) (4,767)
(69,939) 11,155
(40,974) 31,169
(24,940) 2,008
(65,914) 33,177

(5.34) centsfll

1.94 centsfll
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BRI R

At 31st December, 2012 R-ZZ——F+_-A=+—H

2012 2011
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt FHExT THT
Non-current Assets kRBEE
Plant and equipment B M 3 16 15,094 9,861
Mining right PRUERE 7 394,285 452,060
Investment in an associate —RBERRZIRE 18 1,627 3,800
Available-for-sale investment A HERE 20 69 69
Club memberships gHeE 21 1,215 1,263
Convertible notes receivable JE Ui AT R 2R 4 22 2,050 =
414,340 467,053
Current Assets REBEE
Inventories FE 23 32,875 132,365
Trade and other receivables BWE SERF KR
H U AR K 24 45,038 59,894
Bills receivable R E & - 1,476
Amounts due from non-controlling & 4 Fff B8 A &)
shareholders of subsidiaries FEFE MR B 2 FE 25 3,647 3,590
Cash and cash equivalents BeBESEEY 26 89,371 78,370
170,931 275,695
Current Liabilities =R
Trade and other payables ERESEZR R
H e R FK 27 53,046 105,876
Amounts due to related parties e REE AT 238 36(a) 969 25,369
Taxation payables FER IR 6,470 6,462
Other borrowings HEifgE e 28 15,374 15,250
75,859 152,957
Net Current Assets REBEEFE 95,072 122,738
Total Assets less Current HEERRBARS

Liabilities 509,412 589,791
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

a IR R R

At 31st December, 2012 R—ZE——F+=-HA=+—H

2012 2011
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FExT FAT
Capital and Reserves BEXR#E
Share capital fi% A< 29 82,166 82,166
Reserves &% 191,640 232,614
Equity attributable to owners of ZAATFEE AEMLER
the Company 273,806 314,780
Non-controlling interests FE1E S 1 R 2 139,763 164,703
413,569 479,483
Non-current Liabilities kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEE 31 95,843 110,308
509,412 589,791
On behalf of the Board RRES®E
Lau Siu Ying Luo Xi Zhi
2N B2
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR

TE EF
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Statement of Financial Position
B #& AR OR 3R

At 31st December, 2012 R-ZZ——F+_-A=+—H

2012 2011
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt FExT FATT
Non-current Assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries MEBARZIRE 19 53,150 52,721
Current Assets REBEE
Other receivables H th JE U BR 3K 279 DTT
Cash and cash equivalents e kReEEY 5 5
284 282
Current Liabilities =R
Other payables H fth JE S BR 3X 1,040 1,199
Amounts due to subsidiaries BRI B A A2 3 E 19 55,183 30,225
Amount due to a related party BN —REEAT ZIE 36(a) - 22,977
56,223 54,401
Net Current Liabilities REBABEFE (55,939) (54,119)
Total Assets less Current HEERRBARE
Liabilities (2,789) (1,398)
Capital and Reserves EXR#E
Share capital A% AN 29 82,166 82,166
Reserves 1 &7 (84,955) (83,564)
(2,789) (1,398)
On behalf of the Board REREZE
Lau Siu Ying Luo Xi Zhi
2/ fE Bz
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR

Sy EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERERBEX

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE—F——F+_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KATEEAER
Share Non-
Share Share Special  Translation Statutory option  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve funds reserve losses Total interests equity
BRE FEHM
BAx  ROEE KHRE RERE  iTEe wE  RiE8 ag EE  ERAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL FHEL FEL THIL TAL ThT TAL TAL THT ThL
(Note |) (Note i) (Note i) (Note fv) (Note v)
) i) (i ity (i)
At 1st January, 2011 RZ%-——%-f-8 82,166 392,962 2,481 59,161 30,132 4,428 (287,719) 283,611 162,695 446,306
Profit for the year FERT - - - - - - 15,922 15,922 (4,767) 11,155
Exchange differences arising FENEBRETMEEL
on translation of foreign ERZZE
operations - - - 15,247 - - - 15,247 6,775 22,022
Total comprehensive income FE2ELGHA
for the year - - - 15,247 - S 15,922 31,169 2,008 33,177
Transfer of reserve upon REREXRSEREE
forfeiture of share options - - - - - (109) 105 - - -
At 31st December, 2011 RZZ——F+=A=1-8 82,166 392,962 2,481 74,408 30,132 4,323 (271,692) 314,780 164,703 479,483
Loss for the year FERE - - - - - - (43,872) (43,872) (26,067) (69,939)
Exchange differences arising FENEBAETMEEL
on translation of foreign ERZZE
operations - - - 2,898 - - - 2,898 1,127 4,025
Total comprehensive income FEZEAHA
for the year = = = 2,808 = - (43872 (40974 (24940)  (65914)
Transfer of reserve upon lapse of REREXUBEEEE
share options - - - - - (4,323) 4,328 - - -
At 31st December, 2012 RZZ-ZF+=-A=1-8 82,166 392,962 2,481 77,306 30,132 - (311,241) 273,806 139,763 413,569
Notes: Kt iz
()  The share premium represents the amount subscribed for share i) BHOREEARBERANSFEBLEE 2 HIE -
capital in excess of nominal value.
(i)  The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal iy %RIFEEEMEENBARTZKROEBERERR

AR—NANFETEBEEARSRKBATET
ZEOEERZE®E-

value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued for their acquisition at the
time of the group reorganisation in 1999.

MEFBEERBIEB CEE ABFEEN
MERRIEEMEE 2 WS B -

(i) The translation reserve represents gains/losses arising on (iii)
retranslating the net assets/liabilities of foreign operations into
presentation currency.

AEECHERNAKBEEFEARLANE
(TPEDRIzMB AR ZBREGMREZ

(iv) The statutory funds are reserves required by the relevant laws (iv)
applicable to the Group’s subsidiaries established in the People’s

Republic of China (the “PRC”) and can be utilised to offset the prior
years’ losses of the PRC subsidiaries.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options
granted which were yet to be exercised, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payment transaction in Note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements. In current year, the amount
was transferred to accumulated losses when the related options
were lapsed.

R YRR EBEEZETENELRBEF
B2 EE -

BREFEEEEREERRITE BREZ
NP E HFBREEMBERERM ISR ARND B
ERNRZXZ 2 REE-—THIE-NA
FE - ECNAHEBRERNRERE R
B8 -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEBEERER

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE T ——F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
THExT FHT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReEEg
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETSRLAT (E18) & F (85,154) 11,140
Adjustments for: T
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—XMBAF W= - 2)
Interest expenses MERX 1,340 6,535
Interest income B YA (2,898) (1,385)
Reversal of impairment loss HEWKE ZERREM
recognised in respect of JE YRR SR M AR 2 R (B B B 1B
trade and other receivables - (641)
Allowance for trade and HEKE ZERREM
other receivables JFE Y BR 3 2 B 3,321 =
Impairment loss recognised MEBEERZBESE
in respect of goodwill - 2,910
Impairment loss recognised in M—FRBELARREBRZ
respect of investment in an A E A
associate 857 -
Impairment loss recognised in PERIBE R 2 R EEE
respect of mining right 60,847 =
Share of result of an associate DIE—REE R R 2 ¥EE 106 (5)
Write down of inventories 5 & MU 2,346 5,944
Recovery of write down of 5 &MU =
inventories (2,388) (6,162)
Depreciation of plant and BEREEITE
equipment 1,688 1,896
Amortisation of mining right PR 5 107 =
Loss on disposal/write-off of HEWERE RS2 EE
plant and equipment 88 950
Impairment loss recognised in REMEERRZBREEE
respect of club memberships 50 122




Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital
Decrease in inventories
Decrease in trade and other
receivables
Decrease in bills receivable
Increase in amounts due from
non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries
Decrease in trade and
other payables

Cash generated from operations
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid

NET CASH GENERATED FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of
plant and equipment
Disposal of a subsidiary,
net of cash disposed
Interest received
Payment to subscribe
convertible notes
Purchase of plant and equipment

NET CASH USED IN
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

—E2-——&5% | FEEBRERERAT 5/

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE T ——F+_A=+—HIFE

LEECEPINKERDN

il

7 5D
P 5 R B MR OB

FE W R BOR A

JFE M5 B /B 2 ) FE 2 I 14 B SR SR IRSE B

FEATE 5 BR AR e L At B A BR BORL A

REXGHERE
EMPBEEEMFHR

REZDFMEBREFR

REED

hE RS R &2 RS IR
HE-—RMBARF
BERAMELEZRS

2 KA S

RBAREFRRZMAR

BERE KR

REZHMARSFEE

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TAT
(19,690) 21,302
99,532 55,008
12,847 97,951
1,476 5,580
(57) (418)
(54,122) (99,250)
39,986 80,173
= (305)
39,986 79,868
2 950

= (505)

2,744 700
(2,050) -
(6,943) (3,846)

(6,247) (3,539)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

meRERER

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE T ——F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2012 2011
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FExT FATT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Bank and other borrowings raised B &£ ZERITREMEE - 24,600
Repayment to a director BE—REEZTZHE (24,400) (15,429)
Repayment of bank and ERETAEMEE
other borrowings - (59,380)
Interest paid BB (48) (1,380)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ®BEZEFFARE FE
ACTIVITIES (24,448) (51,589)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND BEPRSESEYIEMNFER
CASH EQUIVALENTS 9,291 24,740
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Sz RERBELZEY
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 78,370 45,667
Effect of foreign exchange rate fEREE) v &
changes 1,710 7,963
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS A& >HRERRLZEY
AT END OF YEAR 89,371 78,370
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF REPRESEBYEGBIW
CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
Cash on hand and demand deposits F 5818 & & /& Hi1F 2k 33,571 76,033
Short term highly liquid investment & i i 14 58 Bi4% & 55,800 2,337
89,371 78,370
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P IRAR M R

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE T ——F+_A=+—HIFE

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company with limited liability
incorporated in Bermuda under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended). The shares of the Company
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Its parent and ultimate holding
company is Future 2000 Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands. The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to the
annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“RMB”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) for the convenience
of the shareholders, as the Company is listed in Hong
Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Group are distribution and trading
of mobile phones and related accessories, development
of marketing and after-sales service network and mining
and processing of celestite, zinc and lead minerals. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries and principal associate
are set out in Notes 38 and 39, respectively.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of amendments to HKFRSs - first
effective on 1st January, 2012

Amendments to
HKFRS 1

Severe Hyper Inflation and
Removal of Fixed Dates for
First-time Adopters

Amendments to Disclosures — Transfers of

HKFRS 7 Financial Assets
Amendments to Deferred Tax — Recovery of
HKFRS 12 Underlying Assets

The adoption of these amendments to HKFRSs has no
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

—REHE

RAARBBEBEARE-NAN—FRAFE
() EARETMA L2 ZHREER
DA EHRNEBBHERSMABR AR
([BZFT]) £ e AR R Z B AR K&K
TRAFRAREBREZESEMKLZA
A]Future 2000 Limited ° AR & sE M=
BERTELEMB oMU EFERIATE
B — R o

ARRZNEEERARE (ARKE]) -
BHRARBIREELT  BETRERR &
ERBHRERGUBT (BT 27

RARARBEREERAF - AEEBZEEE
BRSEREERHEERABERMYT &
BHSHEREERBAELEL URKEA
HRMEAZAREMIERS X 2MH
BRAIREZEBENRZELD ISR H
F£38/%39 °

RABRVMBRERER ([FE
MBHmEER])

(a) HRAEEBHBEHEER 55T —
R-ZE—Z—ZF—F—HEXEH

ERAMBREEDN BERBEREE
FRZERT FREREME
Z EIE B
BERAVMBREER RE-MBEE
TR ZER] ZER
BERAMBHREER BEERE-LKD
FA2RZEFT HEEE

REZERBMBREEN 2 BTY
AEBZMBERRLBEERTE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ma S AR M R

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE T ——F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2, ]‘Wﬁﬁﬁ,ﬁ;ﬂ\yji&ﬁ EH ([EH
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) SR EER ) (&)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective

(b) B MEfEE KL FET - AZIEET
BB BHREER

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant AEBWEIREEHATHE BME R
IR AR B A RE BN £ (B B 7S R K 4B

2R EERT BRI RS LR -

to the Group’s financial statements, have been issued,
but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group.

HKFRSs Annual Improvements BB TR RE &R —ETNERZ
(Amendments) 2009-2011 Cycle? (1&37) T——FEH
2 FE
Amendments to Presentation of ltems of Other EEEHEREIR ENEMEZE
HKAS 1 (Revised) Comprehensive Income’ ZIBET (RIEET) WwAER!
Amendments to Presentation — Offsetting BB R E0YE 25—
HKAS 32 Financial Assets and pAHi BENMTS
Financial Liabilities® BfEe
Amendments to Disclosures — Offsetting BB HEE] BT
HKFRS 7 Financial Assets and BT 2 EE] BERIK
Financial Liabilities* afE
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments* BERMBHREERN  MBIA
EI%
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial BAUBREER HRAVBERR
Statements? 1058
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in BB SRS BEREMBER
Other Entities? E125% P 3
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement? EEVBREEN QAT EHS?
F13%
HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements? BEEEERE2H BUMBRER?
(Z2——%)
HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and BA G ERIF 285 E’\\Hﬁ RE k&
Joint Ventures? (Z2——%) BhEIRA?
HK(IFRIC) — Stripping Costs in BB (BERMBRE BRBEERR
Interpretation 20 the Production Phase of REZB®) 2 IR AR?
a Surface Mine? —ZEBE20%
Amendments to Investment entities® ERMBREEL REZE

HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011)

F105%  BENB

HEAFE125% R

S B
BT 2 4]
(=2——%)



2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continueqd)

. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
July, 2012

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2013

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2014

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2015

HKFRSs (Amendments) — Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle

The improvements made amendments to the following
standards:

(i) HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments clarify that the requirement to
present a third statement of financial position
when an entity applies an accounting policy
retrospectively or makes a retrospective
restatement or reclassification of items in its
financial statements is limited to circumstances
where there is a material effect on the information
in that statement of financial position. The date of
the opening statement of financial position is the
beginning of the preceding period and not, as at
present, the beginning of the earliest comparative
period. The amendments also clarify that,
except for disclosures required by HKAS 1.41-
44 and HKAS 8, the related notes to the third
statement of financial position are not required to
be presented. An entity may present additional
voluntary comparative information as long as
that information is prepared in accordance with
HKFRS. This may include one or more statements
and not a complete set of financial statements.
Related notes are required for each additional
statement presented.

2K | PEREEZRERAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE T ——F+_A=+—HIFE

RRAEEMBHREE
5t 7% 3 =

B ([&#&
£xB ) (&)

R == A 7

(b) EMHEfEE KL FET AR IEET
BB BHREER (#F)

1

R=ZT—=—FtA—BxEEHRAZ
F [E B A
R-ZE—=F—A—AxHERKZ
FEHMER
R-ZT—mFE—A— A HEEBRKRZ
F 1 HIR A
R=ZT—RAF—A—BxEEHRAZ
FEHIR £

ERMBHREER (BF]) —=F
ENFE_E——FBHZFENRE

BRABCE S A T ERME BT

(i)

BEBEEREIRYBHREZ
E27]

EHEIHREBEREYERS
STECRSEEEM G HRERGIER B
PEINSEFTHERE2NE=
DI ARR K 2R EIELEE -
FOR UL AR E 2B AR R Bk
MERNZEHBEREEVEZIE
BB BMKAER e BERIE
B —ERBARI R 46 < 5 - T 3F (&
ZEMALL) P UL HBMR
ZE-BBEBINEET BA
BETERFE1.41-445 BB
SEERESHREZWBIN B
BRE=ZMHMBEHREREINIE@W
HoERAZIBEINZEEER
B HBBERNERESRE
MEREERGRR - LA BTE
—MNEEHBER - MTE—ET
BUB®RE -FM25 2 5 @EEEIN
WMERHBE2IHEEWE -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE T ——F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continueqd)

HKFRSs (Amendments) — Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

The amendments clarify that items such as
spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing
equipment are recognised as property, plant
and equipment when they meet the definition of
property, plant and equipment. Otherwise, such
items are classified as inventory.

HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation

The amendments clarify that income tax relating
to distributions to holders of an equity instrument
and to transaction costs of an equity transaction
should be accounted for in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes. Depending on the
circumstances these items of income tax might be
recognised in equity, other comprehensive income
or in profit or loss.

HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting

The amendments clarify that in interim financial
statements, a measure of total assets and
liabilities for a particular reportable segment need
to be disclosed when the amounts are regularly
provided to the chief operating decision maker
and there has been a material change in the
total assets and liabilities for that segment from
the amount disclosed in the last annual financial
statements.

RRAE
Bt 35 3R

BUBREEA ([FE
HEA) (&

A
R == A )

/i

(b) EMHEfE KL FET AR EET
EBHMBHREER (&)

ERMBHREER (BF])

_:g

FNFE-Z——FRPZFERE

(&

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

BEBEIEREI6HYF BE
R&fFE

BRETREBERME BARE
MEERBESHETAME B
EREHs EER - AHERS
ERAME BELERE BRI
ZERBEDERFE-

EBEERE2H B TA:
27

ERETRBEMKRATARE
AEH 2R MR AR 585 T E A&
MR ZKABREZ TSN EIR
BEEEEEF12RMAERA
FR-REBEARBR WEMRBHR
HEAREN R EhEEEA
HIB AR

BB ERE345% R B %
&

BREIEBFET MM BHRR
BB — ERE R 28, RE
BZHBAENRRBESREEHR
TBEEERRERE MK H
ZREERABERLE—NFERM

AIEARBAHREERARBZ

o

all
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE T ——F+_A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. HAEBAMBHREEL ([EB
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) B RS sRE R |) ()

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are (b) E {8 55K E M2 FaT -~ AEIEET

not yet effective (Continueqd)

Amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) — Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) require
the Group to separate items presented in other
comprehensive income into those that may be
reclassified to profit and loss in the future (e.g.
revaluations of available-for-sale financial assets) and
those that may not (e.g. revaluations of property, plant
and equipment). Tax on items of other comprehensive
income is allocated and disclosed on the same basis.
The amendments will be applied retrospectively.

Amendments to HKAS 32 - Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments clarify the offsetting requirements by
adding appliance guidance to HKAS 32 which clarifies
when an entity “currently has a legally enforceable right
to set off” and when a gross settlement mechanism is
considered equivalent to net settlement.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 - Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

HKFRS 7 is amended to introduce disclosures for all
recognised financial instruments that are set off under
HKAS 32 and those that are subject to an enforceable
master netting agreement or similar arrangement,
irrespective of whether they are set off under HKAS 32.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011) - Investment Entities

The amendments apply to a particular class of
businesses that qualify as investment entities. An
investment entity’s business purpose is to invest funds
solely for returns from capital appreciation, investment
income or both. It evaluates the performance of its
investments on a fair value basis. Investment entities
could include private equity organisations, venture
capital organisations, pension funds and investment
funds.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE=Z—=—F+=A=+—RHILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. MASEHMKBE LR ([FB
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) B ER||) (&)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are (b) EMBEf{E [ RER 2 FAT - AEIEET

not yet effective (Continueqd)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011) - Investment Entities (Continueq)

The amendments provide an exception to the
consolidation requirements in HKFRS 10 Consolidated
Financial Statements and require investment entities
to measure particular subsidiaries at fair value through
profit or loss rather than to consolidate them. The
amendments also set out the disclosure requirements
for investment entities. The amendments are
applied retrospectively subject to certain transitional
provisions.

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

Under HKFRS 9, financial assets are classified into
financial assets measured at fair value or at amortised
cost depending on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. Fair
value gains or losses will be recognised in profit or
loss except for those non-trade equity investments,
which the entity will have a choice to recognise the
gains and losses in other comprehensive income.
HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities
from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities that are
designated at fair value through profit or loss, where
the amount of change in fair value attributable to
change in credit risk of that liability is recognised in
other comprehensive income unless that would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In addition,
HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for
derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities.

BB BHREER (&)

ERVBBEEANF105R FEUK
BEFEAE12RR BB ERF27
BB (ZF——F) -REER
(%)

BRI HEBYHHREERE105%
RAEMBHRREEARRERMET
—EGISMER W REREEBIZD
FEFABSERFEFENBLRA
MIERZEMNBRARGEAAKR - BH
ERTNEIN AR EER I WERTE -
BREICEPER HAXRRE
THEIE G

BERMBREENFOF -MBEITR

REBBMHRELENFOR K
BEDBER/R A FEIIRE HKAG
EZMBEE GTEBEEMHE
EZXBEARMBEEZEGNRE
MERHME - A FEZUEZHER
BREBRAER ERETHEEER
AEEMs BERAEENREMEE
WAERE S RBE - EERBRE
ERFO EBE L G5 ERI L3905
BRMBAB ER DERFER
EHEREERRAFEARREZ
MHaEns BZABzEERR
BEgmsl R AFEEHSHINE
e m B ARTER  FRIFLBEEE
iR K& At A B Bl 35 1B Bl © e ob -
BAMBRELENFORRBER LS
FHERIEIR BRI A BEE
MMBREIRE-



—E-—%% | FERBZRARAR 65

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P IRAR M R

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE T ——F+_A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. HEAEEMEBREERN([EE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) BREsREER ) (&)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are (b) E ML R ER 2 FTAT - AENEET

not yet effective (Continueqd)

HKFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 introduces a single control model for
consolidation of all investee entities. An investor has
control when it has power over the investee (whether
or not that power is used in practice), exposure
or rights to variable returns from the investee and
the ability to use the power over the investee to
affect those returns. HKFRS 10 contains extensive
guidance on the assessment of control. For example,
the standard introduces the concept of “de facto”
control where an investor can control an investee
while holding less than 50% of the investee’s voting
rights in circumstances where its voting interest is
of sufficiently dominant size relative to the size and
dispersion of those of other individual shareholders to
give it power over the investee. Potential voting rights
are considered in the analysis of control only when
these are substantive, i.e. the holder has the practical
ability to exercise them. The standard explicitly requires
an assessment of whether an investor with decision
making rights is acting as principal or agent and also
whether other parties with decision making rights are
acting as agents of the investor. An agent is engaged
to act on behalf of and for the benefit of another
party and therefore does not control the investee
when it exercises its decision making authority. The
implentation of HKFRS 10 may result in changes in
those entities which are regarded as being controlled
by the Group and are therefore consolidated in the
financial statements. The accounting requirements in
the existing HKAS 27 on other consolidation related
matters are carried forward unchanged. HKFRS 10 is
applied retrospectively subject to certain transitional
provisions.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. AR BHREEL ([EB
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) BIREmEXER ) (&)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are (b) E ML R ER 2 FAT AL

not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 12 - Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities

HKFRS 12 integrates and makes consistent
the disclosures requirements about interests in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements. It
also introduces new disclosure requirements, including
those related to unconsolidated structured entities. The
general objective of the standard is to enable users of
financial statements to evaluate the nature and risks
of a reporting entity’s interests in other entities and
the effects of those interests on the reporting entity’s
financial statements.

HKFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 provides a single source of guidance
on how to measure fair value when it is required or
permitted by other standards. The standard applies
to both financial and non-financial items measured
at fair value and introduces a fair value measurement
hierarchy. The definitions of the three levels in this
measurement hierarchy are generally consistent
with HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”.
HKFRS 13 defines fair value as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date (i.e. an exit price). The
standard removes the requirement to use bid and
ask prices for financial assets and liabilities quoted
in an active market. Rather the price within the bid-
ask spread that is most representative of fair value in
the circumstances should be used. It also contains
extensive disclosure requirements to allow users of
the financial statements to assess the methods and
inputs used in measuring fair values and the effects of
fair value measurements on the financial statements.
HKFRS 13 can be adopted early and is applied
prospectively.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE T ——F+_A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. HEAEEMEBREERN([EE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) BREsREER ) (&)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are (b) E ML R ER 2 FTA] -~ AEIEET

not yet effective (Continueqd)

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 20 - Stripping Costs in the
Production Phase of a Surface Mine

Stripping activities carried out in the production phase
of a surface mine may give rise to two benefits:
usable ore that can be used to produce inventory
and improved access to further quantities of material
that will be mined in future periods. The Interpretation
requires that costs of stripping activity are accounted
for in accordance with the principles in HKAS 2
Inventories to the extent that the benefit from stripping
activity is realised in the form of inventory produced.
The costs of stripping activity that provide a benefit
in the form of improved access to ore are recognised
as a non-current stripping activity asset when certain
criteria are met. This asset will be accounted for as
an addition or enhancement to an existing asset and
is classified as tangible or intangible according to the
nature of the existing asset of which it forms part. The
stripping activity asset is measured initially at cost and
subsequently in the same way as the existing asset
of which it forms part. It is depreciated or amortised
on a systematic basis over the expected useful life of
the component of the ore body that becomes more
accessible as a result of the stripping activity. The
interpretation is applied to production stripping costs
incurred after the beginning of the earliest period
presented. Predecessor stripping activity asset balance
is reclassified as a part of an existing asset subject to
the conditions in the Interpretation.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the potential impact of these new/revised HKFRSs
and the directors so far concluded that the application
of these new/revised HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE T ——F+_-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except that certain financial
instruments are measured at fair values, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. In addition, these financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”). Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with unrealised profits
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income from the effective dates of
acquisition or up to the effective dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of the
Group.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE T ——F+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value
of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests
issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally measured
at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or losses
are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on
a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiaries either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other non-controlling interests are measured at fair value
unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless they
are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the
costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about
the fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an
asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interest
and the non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interest is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE T ——F+_-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
() the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are
accounted for in the same manner as would be required if
the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests at
initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share
of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to such non-controlling interests even if
this results in those non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Company is able to
exercise control. Control is achieved where the Company,
directly or indirectly, has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting
rights that are presently exercisable are taken into account.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE T ——F+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess of
the aggregate of consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests over the fair value
of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceed the fair value of consideration
paid, the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the
acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that financial year.
When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other
assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying
amount to each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed in
subsequent period.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, investments in associates are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost as
adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share
of the net assets of the associates, less any identified
impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate,
the Group discontinues recognised its share of further
losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a
liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at the
date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill. The goodwill
included within the carrying amount of the investment is
not tested for impairment separately. Instead, the entire
carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment
as a single asset. Any impairment loss recognised is not
allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment in the associate.
Any reversal of impairment loss is recognised to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE T ——F+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the principal
outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of

plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives and

after taking into account of their estimated residual values,
using the straight-line method. The principal annual rates
used for the current year are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 5%-20% or over the term of the
relevant leases, whichever is
shorter

Furniture, fixtures and 20%-33%

equipment

Motor vehicles 20%-25%
An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the profit or loss
in the period in which the item is recognised.

Construction in progress represents plant and equipment
under construction or pending installation and is stated
at cost less any impairment losses. No provision for
depreciation is made on construction in progress until
such time as the relevant assets are completed and ready
for intended use. Construction in progress is classified to
the appropriate category of plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE=Z—=—F+=A=+—RHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. TEEHRE(£)
Intangible asset BEEE
Club memberships EFEes

Club memberships with indefinite life are carried at cost less
any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Mining right

Mining right is stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Mining
right is amortised using the units of production method
based on the proven and probable mineral reserves.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At the end of reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
reduced. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. In addition,
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication
that they may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE T ——F+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Provision for close down and restoration costs

Close down and restoration costs are provided in the
accounting period when the obligation arising from the
related disturbance occurs, whether this occurs during mine
development or during the production phase, based on
the net present value of estimated future costs. The cost is
capitalised where it gives rise to future benefits, whether the
rehabilitation activity is expected to occur over the life of the
operation or at the time of close down. The capitalised cost
is amortised over the life of the operation and the increase
in the net present value of the provision is included in
borrowing costs. Where there is a change in the expected
decommissioning and restoration costs, an adjustment is
recorded against the carrying value of the provision and
related assets, and the effect is then recognised in the
profit or loss on a prospective basis over the remaining life
of the operation. Provision for close down and restoration
costs do not include any additional obligations which
are expected to arise from future disturbance. The cost
estimates are reviewed and revised at the end of each
reporting period to reflect changes in conditions.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, cost of conversion and other costs that
have been incurred in bringing the materials and supplies to
their present location and condition, is calculated using the
first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE T ——F+_-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter
into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of
rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE T ——F+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.,e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at
the end of reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity (the translation reserve).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in the translation reserve.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE T ——F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as revenue in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the cost
of an asset are deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and consequently are effectively recognised in profit
or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
other PRC state-managed retirement benefit schemes
are charged as expenses when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE T ——F+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be recognised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is recognised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of reporting period. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Group expects, at the end of reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE T ——F+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and recognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

These assets include financial assets held for trading and
financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified
as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be designated as
a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss, except
where the embedded derivative does not significantly
modify the cash flows or it is clear that separation of the
embedded derivative is prohibited.

Financial assets may be designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss if the following criteria
are met: (i) the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise
arise from measuring the assets or recognising gains or
losses on them on a different basis; (ii) the assets are part
of a group of financial assets which is managed and its
performance evaluated on a fair value basis according to
a documented management strategy; or (iii) the financial
asset contains an embedded derivative that would need to
be separately recorded.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FEEHME (&)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables, bills
receivable, amounts due from related parties, cash and
cash equivalents) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
or held-to-maturity investments. Subsequent to initial
recognition, these assets are carried at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for impairment losses and foreign exchange
gains and losses on monetary instruments, which are
recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at
cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of
other reporting period subsequent to initial recognition (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 HE T ——F+_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of reporting period. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

e granting concession to a debtor because of debtor’s
financial difficulty; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Where a decline in the fair value constitutes objective
evidence of impairment, the amount of the loss is removed
from equity and recognised in profit or loss.

Any impairment losses on available-for-sale debt
investments are subsequently reversed in profit or loss
if an increase in the fair value of the investment can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

For available-for-sale equity investment, any increase in fair
value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FESHME (&)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For available-for-sale equity investment that is carried at
cost, the amount of impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the asset and
the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss is not reversed.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on
the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred. Financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and financial liabilities at amortised
costs are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and
other payables, amounts due to related parties and other
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. The related interest
expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial asset or
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial
assets are transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the share options granted vest immediately, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services
are measured at the fair values of the services received,
unless that fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which
case the services received are measured by reference to
the fair value of the share options granted. The fair values
of the services received are recognised as expenses
immediately, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
option reserve) when the Group obtains the goods or when
the counterparties render services, unless the goods or
services qualify for recognition as assets.

Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

() has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

()  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply: (Continued)

(ii)

(iv)

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); or

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;

and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or

domestic partner.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets within the next financial year.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Mining right

The mining right represents the right of a mining company
in the Group (“Sifa Mining”) to conduct mining activities in
Huangshi City, Hubei Province, the PRC. The mining right
is amortised using the units of production method based
on the proven and probable mineral reserves. Sifa Mining
obtained mining operating permit without any restrictions
for a 5-year term, which was renewable. After the expiration
of the 5-year mining operating permit on 25th September,
2012, the Ministry of Land and Resources of the PRC (/1
#FAREMERELEJREL) had renewed a mining operating
permit, under which Sifa Mining is restricted to exploration
activities only, for a term of 2 years from 25th September,
2012 to 25th September, 2014. Exploitation activities are
prohibited under the aforesaid 2-year mining operating
permit. In the opinion of the directors, Sifa Mining is
currently constructing a new mining site exploitation system
so that the restriction has no adverse effect to the mining
operation and Sifa Mining is able to fulfill the exploitation
requirements set out by the Ministry of Land and Resources
of the PRC and is able to obtain/renew the mining operating
permit without any restrictions until all the proven and
probable minerals have been mined. The directors also
consider that the applications for release of the said
restriction and further renewal of the mining operating
permit are procedural and without significant costs.

Production capacity assumption

The mining operating permit mentioned above limits the
production capacity to 100,000 tons per year. In the
opinion of the directors, the application for increasing the
production capacity is procedural and Sifa Mining should
be able to obtain a mining operating permit with higher
production capacity without significant cost. In case the
production capacity limit cannot be increased, the carrying
amount of the mining right may be impaired.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Reserves estimates

Reserves are estimates of the amount of products that can
be economically and legally extracted from the Group’s
properties. In order to calculate reserves, estimates and
assumptions are required about a range of geological,
technical and economic factors, including quantities,
grades, production techniques, recovery rates, production
costs, transport costs, commodity demand and commodity
prices.

Estimating the quantity and/or grade of reserves requires
the size, shape and depth of ore bodies or fields to be
determined by analysing geological data such as drilling
samples. This process may require complex and difficult
geological judgments and calculations to interpret the data.

Because the economic assumptions used to estimate
reserves change from period to period, and because
additional geological data is generated during the course of
operations, estimates of reserves may change from period
to period. Changes in reported reserves may affect the
Group’s financial results and financial position in a number
of ways, including the following:

()  Asset carrying values may be affected due to changes
in estimated future cash flows.

(i)  Depreciation, depletion and amortisation charged to
profit or loss may change where such charges are
determined by the units of production basis, or where
the useful economic lives of assets change.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continueq)

Reserves estimates (Continued)

(i) Decommissioning, site restoration and environmental
provisions may change where changes in estimated
reserves affect expectations about the timing or cost of
these activities.

(iv) The carrying value of deferred tax may change as
a result of changes in the asset carrying values as
discussed above.

Provision for close down and restoration costs

The provision for close down and restoration costs is
estimated by management based on the current regulatory
requirements issued by the Hubei Provincial Peoples
Government. Provision set up, if any, is reviewed regularly
by management to ensure it properly reflects the obligation
arising from mining and exploration activities.

Estimated impairment of trade and other receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group takes into consideration the estimation of future cash
flows. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31st December,
2012, the carrying amount of trade and other receivables
was approximately HK$45,038,000 net of allowance for
doubtful debts of approximately HK$20,586,000 (2011:
HK$59,894,000 net of allowance for doubtful debts of
approximately HK$17,213,000).
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Estimated allowance for inventories

Management reviews the inventories listing at the end of
each reporting period, and makes allowance for obsolete
and slow-moving inventory items identified. Allowance was
made by reference to the latest market value for those
inventories identified. Where the net recognised value is less
than the cost, a material write down may arise. As at 31st
December, 2012, the carrying amount of inventories (net
of allowances) was approximately HK$32,875,000 (2011:
approximately HK$132,365,000).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objective of managing capital is to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes other borrowings as disclosed in Note 28 and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and various reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of their review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associates thereto. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will
maintain its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as issue of new debt or
the redemption of existing debt.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. Eﬁi‘%lﬂ
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) BBETAEE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Financial assets BEEE
Loans and receivables B % JE Y BR 7R
(including cash and (BREHEzK
cash equivalents) ReZEEY) 123,745 111,716
Available-for-sale investment AR ERE 69 69
Financial liabilities P =R
Financial liabilities measured at REHEAARFTELZ
amortised cost Bsas 55,612 52,123
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HEREBEEZEEERHE

The Group’s major financial instruments include
financial assets included in trade and other receivables,
amounts due from non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries, cash and cash equivalents; financial
liabilities included in trade and other payables, other
borrowings and amounts due to related parties.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in the respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. Management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Market risk
(i)  Foreign currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group are exposed to
foreign currency risk primarily arising from foreign
currency bank deposits, other receivables and
trade and other payables.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueqd) 6. BMIBITRA (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(b) BERBREZEEEREE (&)

(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) mIEER (&
(i)  Foreign currency risk (Continued) (i) HEEpE (&)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s significant
monetary assets and liabilities which are
denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities
at the end of reporting period are as follows:

BE2RMEER AKEINUM
MEEEREER NI ZEE
HEZEREREENRBEBEZIR
EEWT :

Liabilities Assets
= BE
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
FERT FET FERT FET
HK$ BT 1,090 24,201 14 14

The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation
of HK$. The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 4% (2011: 5%) appreciation and
depreciation in the functional currency of the
relevant subsidiaries (RMB) against the above
foreign currency. 4% (2011: 5%) represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of reporting
period for a 4% (2011: 5%) change in the
exchange rates. A strengthening of the functional
currency of the relevant subsidiaries against the
above foreign currency would give rise to the
following impact to the Group’s pre-tax results for
the year and vice versa.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(M)

(i)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Improvement in results FEXEELH
for the year
- HK$ — BT

In the management’s opinion, the above sensitivity
analysis is not necessarily representative of the
inherent foreign currency risk as the exposure at
year end does not reflect the exposure during the
year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is not exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to its fixed-rate borrowing
(see Note 28 for details) as they are carried at
amortised costs. The Group currently does not
have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

The Group is not exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk as the interest rate of borrowing is fixed
(see Note 28 for details).

6. BIEIH(#Z)

(b) BERBREZEEREE (&)

miEER (E
() sEmEgE (&)

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET
43 1,209

(ii)
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueqd) 6. BMIBITRA (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(b) BERBREZEEEREE (&)

Market risk (Continued) mIEER (&

(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i) FEEEE (FE)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31st December, 2012, it is estimated that
a general increase/decrease of 50 basis
points in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would decrease/increase the
Group’s loss for the year and decrease/
increase accumulated losses by approximately
HK$447,000 (2011: HK$380,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for the Group’s variable-rate bank balances
at the end of reporting. The analysis is prepared
assuming these financial instruments outstanding
at the end of reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. The 50 basis point increase/
decrease represents management’s assessment
of a reasonably possible change in interest rates
over the period until the next annual reporting
date. The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2011.

HRE D

Jie— =gy — B = ape= Bl
WA REE 3T HAS08F
META E S SR T (5T
AEBEFEBEZESRD
MR EEEER D E M
#447,0008 T (=T ——F:
380,000/ 7C) °

PRGUBRESTEEAEERNE
BEMEE AR RITEBZT
BEREBMETE BEZIMET)
BRZENSHBHMEE A H KT
1 2 B 76 T AR BB EE 194 R
1T 508 F 2 LA/ THRIE
BENEET —FHA 5L HR
ZEETRNEEEHTIEH —F
——E 2N THFBAREEE

Z

17
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. BMIBIT R (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BEEEBEZEBERKE (/&)

(Continued)
Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its
trade and other receivables, amounts due from non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and bank
balances. Management has a credit policy in place and
the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customers as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customers operate. Ongoing
credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition
of trade customers. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

In addition to credit risk on trade and other receivables,
the Group is also exposed to concentration of
credit risk through advances to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries of HK$3,647,000
(2011: HK$3,590,000). Because of its significance,
management has regular liaison with the counterparty
to understand their financial position and to identify
any early sign of potential problems. Should any
potential default risk arise, the Group’s management
will take prompt actions to safeguard the Group’s
assets.

In addition, the Group had concentration of credit
risk on its liquid funds as 99% (2011: 99%) of bank
balances were placed with five (2011: five) banks.
However, the credit risk on liquid funds is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

FERR

AEEZEERBEIZREEEKE
5 0 R B EL At P M BR SR - FE MR BT B &
AR B MR R 2 TR R RIT M 85
EEERARERR URBEERER
SEMAEZEERR -

Fh R W B B AR R B A e MR RR R T
EMAEERBB E2BIER
BREEXEREEN G -EBFES
RRE P XN B HIR IR 2 4B NR B
MRz UREBEFZARE
BREPEEME ZKLBERE A
SEERESTP UM BARRETH
BEEMGE - AEERETERER
Y B K 1 o

BRIEWE SRR R EMEWERZE
SRR NEEIRE @M E QR
72 ) M IR SR 84 503,647,000/ 7T (=&
— —%F : 3,590,000/ T ) i E ¥ &
FEERK -BREHEEXN WEEES
TEHIHZ ZHFHEL T RETBSK
ARBRBERELMB ALK M
EEMABERRER AAEEERE
EelRENTBRERNEEBEE-

BESN - A AEEI9% (—ZB——%F -
99% ) WITHFREFRNAM (ZF——
F:AR)RIT BAKEEHEFR
BEEERR - AN ARRZHF
REREEFERBEFARIFERN
MZBRIT BRDES 2 EERRE
BR-
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueqd) 6. BMIBITRA (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BEEBREERAERKE (&)

(Continued)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the recognised of borrowings as well as the
cash flows from operating activities.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its derivative and non-
derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities and the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.

REE T E

ERRBECRERK NEEEZEY
HBEEERAREARSAREZER
HES RS RASFEY LWHE
RenBRSzYE - BEEESER
EEZHERBEAARGL R 2 RS

¥y =L
JLEE °

TREJNAEBITERITET KR
BZRBRANBIMFEE - ZRRIER
BRBEZAMRACRENAEER]
ERARECRFEHGRR BEAME
RAEZHRERE-

THE GROUP AEE
Liquidity table REESF
Weighted On Carrying
average  demand or Total amount
effective less than 1-3 3 months undiscounted as at
interest rate 1 month months to1year cashflows  31.12.2012
iy
—E-Cf
TZA
mEEH REXD A AEBEE =t-HZ
ERAZ  HSRMER 12384 E3 kS REAE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERx TART THERL TER
2012 —E-C-f
Non-derivative financial liabilities {74 B % & &
Trade and other payables EHESRAREMEMER - 39,269 - - 39,269 39,269
Amounts due to related parties ERBEALZHE
- Amount due to an associate ~EN—RBE N TE - 500 - - 500 500
— Amount due to a director -EN—2EE2HHE - 469 - - 469 469
Other borrowings Hinfd g
— fixed rate -8 8.47 - - 16,676 16,676 15,374

40,238

= 16,676 56,914 55,612




6.

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continueq)
THE GROUP (Continued)

Liquidity table (Continued)

2011
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Amounts due to related parties

- Amount due to an associate

- Amount due to a director
Other borrowings

- fixed rate

THE COMPANY

Liquidity table

2012

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Other payables

Amounts due to subsidiaries

“E-—FH | PEREEZRERAR
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

Weighted
average
effective

interest rate

MEFH
BIRF*
%
—E--F
FITERKEE
FERE SR RE R RN -
ERBEALZFE
“EN-RBERRZFE -
-EN—REZ 2R -
HffEE
-EE 8.47
Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
mE¥H
BRAIE
%
“E-C%
FITERKEE
QAN -
ERMBARZHE -

6. BIRITH(Z)

(b) BERBREZEEREE (&)

REBESER (&)
TEE (&)
HBELE (&)
On Carrying
demand or Total amount
less than 1-3 3 months undiscounted as at
1 month months to1year  cashflows 31.12.2011
i
Sal==iis
+=H
ZERH MR AURRE =+-HZ
LR1EA 12318 A 215 mEER REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TAR FERT FET FET TET
11,071 128 305 11,504 11,504
500 - - 500 500
24,869 - - 24,869 24,869
- - 16,542 16,542 15,250
36,440 128 16,847 53,415 52,123
AT
ABESE
On Carrying
demand or Total amount
less than 1-3 3 months undiscounted as at
1 month months to1year  cashflows  31.12.2012
i
—E-_F
t=h
RERY @A AWMERE =t-Az
SMfER 1238 A 3k RELE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TiER TiEn T#n TEr
1,040 - - 1,040 1,040
55,183 - - 55,183 55,183
56,223 - - 56,223 56,223

55
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. BT AR (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BEEEBEZEBERKE (/&)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESRR (&)
THE COMPANY (Continued) AT (&)
Liquidity table (Continueq) TREELF (&)

Weighted On Carrying
average  demand or Total amount
effective less than 1-3 3 months undiscounted as at

interest rate 1 month months to1year  cashflows 31.12.2011
i

“2——F

+=A

nEEH RERHK MR AMEEE =t-AHZ

ERAZE  SMER EXE] Z21E mEEE FEE

% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TEL TEL TEL

2011 —E—-F

Non-derivative financial liabilites ~ F T4 HEEE

Other payables HibERERER - 1,199 - = 1,199 1,199

Amounts due to subsidiaries ERMBARZZE - 30,225 = - 30,225 30,225

Amount due to a director ER—RES2HE = 22,977 = = 22,977 22,977
54,401 - - 54,401 54,401

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND TURNOVER 7. PHERREXEE
(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of (a) TE2H7HBRIAZHT Wz

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets Em BEREBEZHE

and liabilities

The Group determines its operating segments based REEBERBIEFLREAECEES

on the reports reviewed by the chief operating BARE([TEBLEARE])EH

decision-makers (the “CODM”) that are used to make IHREETHEES -

strategic decisions.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION AND TURNOVER
(Continued)

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets
and liabilities (Continued)

During the year ended 31st December, 2012, the
Group has two reportable segments. The segments
are managed separately as each business offers
different products and services and requires different
business strategies. The following summary describes
the operations in each of the Group’s reportable
segments:

e  Mobile phone business

o Mining business

Inter-segment transactions are priced with reference
to prices charged to external parties for similar
order. Corporate expenses, corporate assets and
corporate liabilities are not allocated to the reportable
segments as they are not included in the measure of
the segments’ profit or loss, segments’ assets and
segments’ liabilities that are used by the CODM for
assessment of segment performance.

P

MERREREE (E)

287 8RR Z2H 7 5 W -
B BEREBEZHL (&)

e e e e
B AEEHAEMEN2HS - AR
EXEBRHETAERANRE XA
FERMIRAZEBHRE WU ED
%EE%F#J%E%LXT*E%%#“%@K%
EERN2HO MW EE

. BOEEEH

s REE®

DHBEARZ 2 BRIIZERBLUTE
mMINRALTHERZ BIRETE - AR
EXH rEEERGEEBELLRE
FAXZLERREN G BRER
ERZOEENHLERE DEEER
DEBEAR BIRBEREIRESA
EHDEL -
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND TURNOVER 7. DHERREXERE (/)
(Continued)
(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of (a) TE2HESHBRAZH T Wz

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets

and liabilities (Continued)

B BEREBEZHL (&)

For the year ended 31st December, 2012 g8z2z-—F——-—f£+-HB=+-—-81
FE
Mobile
phone Mining
business business Total
By
BEER Y ES st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FE&T FHERT FERT
Reportable segment revenue RENREEZ
from external customers Al 2 ;o M= 623,049 - 623,049
Reportable segment loss AEHRDIEE (12,416) (65,525) (77,941)
Loss on disposal/write-off of HE M H B R &
plant and equipment HE2 BB 8 80 88
Depreciation and amortisation T K g 1,076 685 1,761
Impairment loss recognised HIEWE 5 RHFER
in respect of trade receivables (B B 18 3,321 - 3,321
Impairment loss recognised PERIERE R 2 B EEE
in respect of mining right - 60,847 60,847
Write down of inventories FEMUR 2,346 - 2,346
Recovery of write down of 5 & MUR =
inventories (2,388) - (2,388)
Reportable segment assets A2 IHE F 166,318 411,712 578,030
Additions to non-current assets  3ER B A &R 940 6,059 6,999
Reportable segment liabilities G Ea R = ﬁ (36,100) (127,172) (163,272)
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND TURNOVER 7. DHERREXERE (1)
(Continued)
(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of (a) TEZH7EHRAZHS B Wz
reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets B EEREBEZHAE (&)

and liabilities (Continued)

2012
HK$’000
TER
Revenue I &=
Reportable segment revenue and A2 s RiREe W
consolidated revenue 623,049
Loss before income tax BRATE R AT E 1R
Reportable segment loss A 2w IEE (77,941)
Interest income FEMA 2,898
Impairment loss recognised M—FKBE LA 2 R ER
in respect interest in an associate REE R (857)
Miscellaneous loss IR E (17)
Corporate expenses ﬁ%i i (7,791)
Share of result of an associate DE—REE QR 2 EE (106)
Finance costs BhE AR (1,340)
Consolidated loss before income tax bR FT 1S B A ES 18 (85,154)
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AR HEE 578,030
Unallocated corporate assets ROBBEEE
— Investment in an associate ——REZERRZEKE 1,627
— Others —HAth 5,614
Consolidated total assets HEEERE 585,271
Liabilities =K
Reportable segment liabilities BEE SR =Y 163,272
Unallocated corporate liabilities KO EEE 8,430

Consolidated total liabilities EBRBEET 171,702
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND TURNOVER 7. SBEPREEE (£)
(Continued)
(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of (a) TE2HESHBRAZH T Wz

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets

B BEREBEZHL (&)

and liabilities (Continueqd)

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 2z e e e =
FE
Mobile
phone Mining
business business Total
[E20)
BREE IR BE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAET
Reportable segment revenue KB %5‘?@)5 .
from external customers A 2Wm o HE 1,764,271 1,591 1,765,862
Reportable segment profit/(loss) 7] 25 % F), (EE) 34,951 (6,651) 28,300
Loss on disposal/write-off of &M R B &
plant and equipment Rz EBE 2 948 950
Depreciation and amortisation 72 K # §4 1,228 655 1,883
Write down of inventories 7 & O 5,944 - 5,944
Recovery of write down of & & #Mos # e
inventories (6,162) - (6,162)
Reportable segment assets AEwROHEE 269,673 466,251 735,924
Additions to non-current assets FERBEERE 229 3,574 3,803
Reportable segment liabilities AZmoHasE (87,852) (142,222) (230,074)
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For the year ended 31st December, 2012 &

SEGMENT INFORMATION AND TURNOVER
(Continued)

(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets

and liabilities (Continued)

Revenue
Reportable segment revenue and
consolidated revenue

Profit before income tax

Reportable segment profit

Interest income

Impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill
Miscellaneous loss

Corporate expenses

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Share of result of an associate

Finance costs

Consolidated profit before income tax

Assets
Reportable segment assets
Unallocated corporate assets

— Investment in an associate
— Others

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities

Reportable segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

e B = =Rl

7. DHERREEE (&)

(a

iy 2

A2H 0wl REE K
B FT 15 Bt Al 8

] 2 %o B A

2 WA

BB ZBERE
MIEER

EH

HE—KMB ARz Wa
DE—FKBERB KA
B & R

REEEMRE
&8E
AEHDHMEE
ANEELERE

3F
o>
pii
It
BN
GRE
s

287 8RR Z2H 7 5 W -
B BEREBEZHL (&)

2011
HK$'000
TAET

1,765,862

28,300
1,385
(2,910)
(245)
(8,862)
2

5
(6,535)

11,140

735,924

3,800
3,024

742,748

230,074
33,191

263,265
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND TURNOVER
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Geographical information

During 2012 and 2011, the Group’s operations and
non-current assets are situated in the PRC in which all
of its revenue was derived.

Information about major customer

During 2012 and 2011, there was no customer with
whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s
revenue.

Turnover

Turnover is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of

THENREERTE (&)

(b) HHEHER
RZB-——FR_Z——F KKH

ZEBRIFRBDEEAMNFTE M
2R EERETE -

(c) EHTEEFZEH

R-B——_FR_F——F FEE
PR IMEREEREEBI0% °

(d) EFXHE

EEBRZERAERKEZ AFER
E EAREBKERETHCELER
K B ER AR 75 B 2 3R IR - B 0B
PR HEERBEBIER -

discounts and sales related taxes.

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

(Impairment loss)/reversal of impairment
loss recognised in respect of
trade and other receivables

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
interest in an associate

Exchange loss

Loss on disposal/write-off of
plant and equipment

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
club memberships

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
goodwill

8. Htlhm RER

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHExT F&TT
HEWE SRR R
H 8 WY BR SR RR
(REEE) RE
EE (8,321) 641
R—RBLENRERERZ
VEREN R ] (857) -
& N EiE (743) (675)
e MBERE REEZ
&8 (88) (950)
HemesERRZRAERE
(50) (122)
HEBERZREESE
- (2,910)

(5,059) (4,016)
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9. FINANCE COSTS 9. WMEMRE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
F&T FHET
Interests on: FEBR:
Bank and other borrowings HARAFRNEBEEEZ
wholly repayable within five years RITREMEE 1,292 2,624
Promissory notes R - 3,895
Bills discounting FHER 48 16
1,340 6,535
10. INCOME TAX CREDIT 10. FiIBHER
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
THExT FHET
The amount of income tax credit REEEBARZFER
in the consolidated statement of R e IR
comprehensive income represents:
Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax BVEAF: — P B> ¥ S/
(“EIT"): ([REMRER]) :
— under/(over) provision in respect of - BAFEREBETRE/
prior year (HBFEE®E) 23 (19)
Deferred tax (Note 31) EERIE (H7E31) (15,238) =
Income tax credit FrisfiiE s (15,215) (15)
Fortune (Shanghai) International Trading Co., Ltd (“Fortune RER(EB)BBRESERAR ([RE L
Shanghai”) and EBEEZBEEE S BR A5 (“Shanghai BEESREBREBEZERAR (ML
Yuanjia”) were established in Shanghai Waigaogiao Free BEEZ])RTPELEEINEBRHERK L
Trade Zone, the PRC; and ¥} /BMERERBAZESR MKETMEREBRARBAERAF ([ZK
[ A A (“Zhuhai Reminda”) was established in Zhuhai BERE])RNPREKEGCERFEMKL &
Special Economic Zone, the PRC. For the year ended 31st E-E——_F+-A=+—HBIFE %Z
December, 2012, these PRC subsidiaries were subject to EhEMMERRRKS% (ZT——F:
the EIT rate of 25% (2011: preferential EIT rate of 24%). & BELEMESMME24% ) 2 ETEH
AR EE AR AT (“Sifa Mining”) was established in the MEMNT EAMEEERRAA ([E88
PRC and subject to the EIT rate of 25% (2011: 25%). B PP BIRY  BIiR25% (ZF ——

F:25%) ZEMEHHEM -
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10.

INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

FTA=T—ALFE

10.

No provision has been made for income tax as the Group
did not have any estimated assessable profits during the

year.

The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to

the (loss)/profit before income tax per the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income as follows:

(Loss)/profit before income tax

Tax (credit)/charge at the domestic
income tax rate of 25%
(2011: 24%) (Note)

Tax effect of share of result of
an associate

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
and utilisation of deductible temporary
differences

Under/(over) provision in respect of
prior year

Effect of different tax rates of group
entities operating in other jurisdictions

Tax credit for the year

BATEHAT (B18), 8

R T A5 B B 2R 25%
ZE——F:24%)
SFEZHIE (Ee)
> (P E)

DME—RBERTZ
RBEIBBEE

TSR 2 BB E

BERBRMBAZH G E

AERRAERBER
BAAHNERERZ
MBERE

BEFERETR/
(EBFERR)

HprZgm e E s K H
ERTRABRERZRE

FEMEAEER

FiEHER (&)

R AR BN A FE E W B A 2 ER
g A - W EAPTE TR R -

AERZBHREARERE

EEBAKRZ

BRETSRAT (E18) S8 FE R

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
(85,154) 11,140
(21,289) 2,674
27 (1)
1,984 3,414
(374) (165)
3,644 6,812)
23 (15)

770 890

(15,215)

(15)
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10. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continuead)

At the end of reporting period, the Group had estimated
unused tax losses of approximately HK$176,357,000 (2011:
HK$247,231,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
the estimated unused tax losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax
losses are losses of approximately HK$74,160,000 (2011:
HK$150,303,000) that may be carried forward for a period
of five years from their respective year of origination. Other
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of reporting period, the Group also had
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$16,049,000 (2011: HK$25,241,000). No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary difference as it is not probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

Note: The domestic income tax rate represents the EIT rate where
the Group’s operations are substantially based.

10. FiSHER (&)

REFRPLEER - AEBE B AE
TR R G F < &R IEEIR
# /176,357,000 L (ZF —— & :
247,231,00078 7T ) © R 74 M 0% FRRI 5K 2R %
MR W\ G2 MARE R 2T
EEBBRARLERIEEE ;T ARBRE
THE B 2 BB %) A74,160,000/ 7T (=&
——%:150,303,000& ) ' Al B EA &
FERFERF HftEBEARRALE -

RERMAEER AXEBTAAHNNRE
B 2= 58 #916,049,0008 T (=& — —F:
25,241,000/ 7T) BN N R A BE & & 7]
MBI EREEANEERERT AN - R
ERZEUNNEREERERELEHIEE
Eo

BYRE: ANHPAIS B R IE AR B AR X5 5E
RZEEMEHBEX-
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11. (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AND (LOSS)/
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE

COMPANY

(@) (Loss)/profit for the year has been arrived at after

charging:

Auditor’s remuneration
Cost of inventories recognised
as expense
Write down of inventories
Recovery of write down of inventories
Amortisation of mining right

Depreciation of plant and equipment
Less: capitalised in construction in
progress

Staff costs
— directors’ emoluments (Note 12)
— other staff costs
— retirement benefit scheme
contribution (excluding
directors)

and after crediting:

Service income from provision of
logistics and promotion services

Interest income

Government grants

(b)

1. FE (F8) SAREAAT
BEAEWG (BEB) RF

(a) FE (FrR) IEFEHME:

2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FE&T FE T
% R B & 942 855
EERART ZFERAN
609,374 1,704,539
7 & #UR 2,346 5,944
7 & iR & (2,388) (6,162)
FRUE 1 5 107 =
BEREE2TE 1,787 1,896
BoBENEERIRE
(99) =
1,688 1,896
8 TR
—EEME (FsE12) 4,375 3,975
—HM 8 ITRA 10,696 13,762
— R & F 5T 84 30
(TBEESE)
1,784 2,581
16,855 20,318
= NS
REMREEERBEZ
PR 75 WA 1,522 3,919
B U A 2,898 1,385
RS 78 B 1,048 1,183

(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of the Company

Loss attributable to owners of the Company for the

year ended 31st December, 2012 includes a loss of
HK$1,367,000 (2011: a profit of HK$10,336,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of

the Company (Note 37).

(b) ERAFEEAE (FE) EF

BHE_ZT——F+-A=1+—HBL*HF
EZARRRHEBAEEEEBIERE
1,367,000 L2 BB (ZF——F:
& #)10,336,000/8 7T )  ILEBE R A
NA B HREREIE (M5E37) °
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12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 12. EE &

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight FEFRNENKENTFNAM(ZZE——F: +

(2011: seven) directors during the year were as follows: MNIBEEZEZMEHT

Chang
Lau Fung Law Wing Wong

Siu Ying Luo Qi lp, Chun Seng,  Lit Chor, ~ ChenYi

(“Mr. Lau”) XiZhi  Alfonso Kwan Victor Alexis Gang  Wang Yu Total
g E

(Maxxl)  #®B: REX ER# Bk 29 RAAE IR @it
HK§'000  HKEO00  HK$'000  HK§'000  HKEO00 HKE'000  HKS'000  HKE'000  HK$'000
ST W e Ul i PN P s, i

(Note ) (Note i) (Note )
(Wizxi)  (HsEi) (B zHi)

2012 —B-CF
Fees ok - - 43 29 100 100 34 - 306
Salaries and allowances e Rz 2,453 176 - - - - - 822 3,451
Performance related incentive FRABRBIEA

bonuses (Note iii (B i) 545 - - - - - - - 545
Retirement benefit scheme BINBRFEIER

contribution 2 33 - - - - - 38 73
Total emoluments Hegs 3,000 209 43 29 100 100 34 860 4,375
2011 —B——%
Fees ik - - 100 - 100 100 80 - 380
Salaries and allowances e R2s 1,667 172 - - - - - 866 2,705
Performance related incentive FREABRBIA

bonuses (Note iii ( B i) 750 83 - - - - - = 833
Retirement benefit scheme BINBRIFEIER

contribution 2 18 - - - - - 37 57
Total emoluments Hegs 2,419 273 100 - 100 100 80 903 3,975
Notes: B AT :
(i) Fung Oi Yip, Alfonso and Chen Yi Gang were resigned on 5th (i) EBELENTHN _—_ZE——F,<~BAHE

June, 2012. {F o
(i) Law Chun Kwan was appointed on 5th June, 2012. iy BIRWR-_ZTE——FARBEZET-
(i)  The performance related incentive bonuses for 2012 and iy —E—-FER-T——FFEZRIBIEH
2011 was determined with reference to performance of the BENITCAK 2 EREBEEET -

Group.
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13. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EEB &
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the AREBRNESHEALTH BEPmRA (=
Group, two (2011: two) were directors of the Company TE——F W) ABARTES HiEH
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in Note N EXWF1I2F BB ER AN BN =1L
12 above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2011: (ZB——F =) ALTZHMENRT:

three) individuals were as follows:

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Salaries and allowances e KRR 1,473 1,724
Retirement benefit scheme contribution 3R K48 F 51 21 it 7% 63 (63)
1,536 1,661
Their emoluments were within the following band: ZERERBZMEN T EE :
2012 2011
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEHE EE#H
Up to HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 7T LA A 8 3
None of the five highest paid individuals waived any NAEENRATEEN AU HATHEE
emoluments in current and prior years. ME KB R -
During the years ended 31st December, 2012 and 2011, BEExE_E——-—HFgrR-_ZETE—F+=AH1
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest =t+—HIFEE - AEEHERLUSS
paid individuals, including directors, as an inducement to FAL(BRES)XNEAME ERHE
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss BRENMARETEINARNEBRR Mk 1E

of office. BB mE -
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DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during current and prior
years, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of
reporting period (2011: Nil).

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of (loss)/earnings per share for the year
is based on the loss for the year attributable to owners
of the Company of HK$43,872,000 (2011: profit of
HK$15,922,000) and the weighted average number
of 821,663,442 shares in issue during the year (2011:
821,663,442 shares in issue).

The computation of diluted (loss)/earnings per share does
not assume the exercise of the Company’s share options
outstanding during the year as the exercise price of those
options is higher than the average market price for shares
for both 2012 and 2011.

14.

15.

R E

RAFERBEFEA  HEIRAEIK
RE - B2 HmEAE B AR IR E UK E 17
H&/%\ (:g__fﬁ : ﬁ) %

SR (EER) BF

FRAER(ER) /BN BEFARA
RIYEAE A Z FE G E51843,872,000% 7T (=
T ——4F 3 F)15,922,0008 7T ) M ERE
BEITRR17821,663,4420% 2 INtEFHE (=
T —— £ :821,663,44208 2 BT ) &t
o

HRZE——FR_Z——FBREZTT
EESRENFOME RFESRET
(E18) /BRI ERRITEARBNE
MARTTE 2 RE AR HE -

=
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16. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. BE K& E

The Group
58
Furniture,
Leasehold  fixtures and Motor  Construction
improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
B
HERE KERRB RE ERIE o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THT THT TER FTET AT
COST BA
At 1st January, 2011 R=ZF——F—HR—H 8,143 3,748 4,222 - 16,113
Exchange adjustments ERAE 288 108 108 - 504
Additions il 939 681 593 1,633 3,846
Disposals/write-off HE (1,379) (44) - - (1,417)
At 31st December, 2011 —E——%+ZA=+—H 7,997 4,493 4,923 1,633 19,046
Exchange adjustments ER%}E% 61 27 26 13 127
Additions il 1,346 601 - 5,095 7,042
Disposals/write-off HE/ = (533) = = (533)
At 31st December, 2012 ——#+=-A=+-H 9,404 4,588 4,949 6,741 25,682
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION i*l‘?ﬁ%
At 1st January, 2011 —T——%—-R—H 3,203 2,371 1,859 - 7,433
Exchange adjustments ER%}E% 125 63 23 - 211
Provided for the year FEERE 749 525 622 = 1,896
Eliminated on disposal/write-off HE /MR ER (319) (36) - = (355)
At 31st December, 2011 =T R = 3,758 2,923 2,504 - 9,185
Exchange adjustments [REH%& 31 16 12 - 59
Provided for the year EERE 593 529 665 - 1,787
Eliminated on disposal/write-off P&/ R = (443) - = (443)
At 31st December, 2012 ——%#+-R=+-H 4,382 3,025 3,181 - 10,588
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 31st December, 2012 R-Z-—#+-A=+—H 5,022 1,563 1,768 6,741 15,094
At 31st December, 2011 ZT——%+ZA=+—A 4,239 1,670 2,419 1,633 9,861
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17. MINING RIGHT

COST
At 1st January, 2011
Exchange adjustments

At 31st December, 2011
Exchange adjustments

At 31st December, 2012

ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1st January, 2011
Exchange adjustments

At 31st December, 2011
Amortisation provided for the year
Impairment for the year

Exchange adjustments

At 31st December, 2012

CARRYING VALUE
At 31st December, 2012

At 31st December, 2011

17. RIERE
The Group
REE
HK$’'000
TATT
2N
TR =T =t SR 434,240
PE 5§ % 18,400
e o oy = ey 2 452,640
[E 5 5% 3,680
R-ZEB—=—F+=-RA=+—8H 456,320
2t EBERRE
R—_ZE——F—H—H 557
PE H 8B 23
R-ZE——F+-H=+—8H 580
F 8 5 1 107
FRE 60,847
[E 5 F 501
R=ZE——F+=-_A=+—8 62,035
AR E
R=F——=&+=A=+=H 394,285
IREB=tEo i = (e 452,060
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17. MINING RIGHT (Continued)

The mining right represents the right of Sifa Mining to
conduct mining activities in Huangshi City, Hubei Province,
the PRC. The mining right is amortised using the units of
production method based on the proven and probable
mineral reserves. Sifa Mining obtained mining operating
permit without any restrictions for a 5-year term, which
was renewable. After the expiration of this 5-year mining
operating permit on 25th September, 2012, the Ministry
of Land and Resources of the PRC (% A R & F1E
+#&JR#E0) had renewed a mining operating permit, under
which Sifa Mining is restricted to exploration activities only,
for a term of 2 years from 25th September, 2012 to 25th
September, 2014. Exploitation activities are prohibited
under the aforesaid 2-year mining operating permit. In the
opinion of the directors, Sifa Mining is currently constructing
a new mining site exploitation system so that the restriction
has no adverse effect to the mining operation and Sifa
Mining is able to fulfill the exploitation requirements set out
by the Ministry of Land and Resources of the PRC and is
able to obtain/renew the mining operating permit without
any restrictions until all the proven and probable minerals
have been mined. The directors also consider that the
applications for release of the said restriction and further
renewal of the mining operating permit are procedural and
without significant costs.

The exploitation on the first phase was completed in 2010.
Sifa Mining commenced developing a new mining site
exploitation system in the next phase since then. However,
the development had been inevitably and adversely affected
by the downturn of the global mineral resources demand
since second half of 2012. Although it is expected that
the downturn is temporary and only being a normal cyclic
adjustment in the industry, the management proceeded in a
prudent way to restructure the overall construction schedule
of this new mining system, by readjusting construction
speed and time schedule for matching the industry cycle
accordingly. Besides, the management is exploring all
commercially viable opportunities to maximise the return
from this investment.

17. SRIEHRE ()

REEERERERTERLEEZATE
TIREEE 2T - FHIBETIERFRA K
HEBRERENEEBNAEE - BERE
¥ B RS I EM AR F 2 A FHRE
A WA TE AR T HRER
AER-ZE—-FALA=-+ABEHE
PEARAMBEE LT ERHBC EERET
A - UL - SRB TR EAIR B R AT TR R
EE AR —FhAZ+HRHEEEC
T-NEAA-+RERAILAHRE it
MEHRBET A B ETHRAREE -E
ERE BBREEREESFBEHARR
BB BRR S H R B E S TR R
2. BIRsmEEAMERPBELE R
Frel 2 FRIRAE R RE EETE
MRS ARG 2 RBETAIE BEEAMTE R
ARETEEARTRE -E2NRA  B5
fRR HR I R — S EBE R A BB
REME TESBEBAKAE-

FHEEZARIELCER-F—FTFx
RoSBBBENEREAR T —HE ER
MIBMFARRL - AT AR EHRBEER
FRB_F-—_FT+FEAR ARAE
REAJELZITNZE - BERMTS
RBERME E/FANZ LEBHRE
EEECDRIEEE G ENAEIE
BREBEEX BEEAFRBERRZAEET
& ABSTRBER I EEEL
MAMBEREEEATZIHE UEE
RERE@R-
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17. MINING RIGHT (Continued)

The directors have carefully reviewed the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit of the mining business
to which the mining right is allocated by reference to
the professional valuation as at 31st December, 2012,
performed by Cushman & Wakefield Valuation Advisory
Services (HK) Ltd.. The recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit was determined based on a value in use
calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management at a
discount rate of 17.7% (2011: 16.5%) and a steady growth
rate of 3.0% (2011: 3.2%). The key assumptions adopted in
the value in use calculation relate to the renewal of mining
operating permit, estimated reserves, estimated productivity
and the estimated prices of mineral resources.

Based on the above review, with the consideration of the
readjusting construction speed and time schedule for
matching the industry cycle, the directors of the Company
have assessed the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit which is lower than its carrying value as
at 31st December, 2012. Accordingly, the shortfall of
HK$60,847,000 was recognised as impairment loss on
mining right.

At 31st December, 2012, 100,000 tons (2011: 100,000
tons) minerals included in the underlying reserves were
pledged to the other borrowings (Note 28).

17. SRUEHE (&)

EEERERETEREXBEBAR AR
R-E——F+_-_A=1+—HEETzE%
HEHESERBEENRBEEBRSE
EBENzAIREEEFAEN BReE
EBEZAINESEREEREEE
ERTEFERAKERENE MRBEIR
17.7% (ZZF——F:16.5% ) 2R R K
8.0% (ZF——F:832% )2 BTEHER
stz HeRERill -FEEREEBR
RAZEEBRRZDEREEFBTAIE
EMERMGHE B EERRGE
1 o

ERNLER ZRIABITEREHME
A T ERNMERR NRRESF
i BEeELBEUZKESRERER
T —F+ZA=t+—RAZEKHEE-F
It - Z £860,847,0007% JT B, 7 72 /3 £ 1 7
R E R

R-ZEBE——E+-_A=+—H H@EHF=S
7 5 100,000M ( =% ——% : 100,000ME )
BEC/EAHEMEE KR (HE28) -

A
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18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. — XEE QT Z2RE
The Group
AEE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FETT

Cost of investment in an unlisted associate A 3E F HHE & A 5 2

REBKA 2,131 3,341

Share of post-acquisition reserves FEAG UK B 12 R 1 353 459

2,484 3,800
Less: Allowance for impairment R E R (857) =

1,627 3,800
Particulars of the associate as at 31st December, 2012 and R-F _¢&_T\——¢‘l‘ BI=Ear=
2011 are set out in Note 39. H 2B &R e EEH RS9 -
Included in the cost of investment in an associate is R-EELFWE —FRBERNAMELAZ
goodwill of HK$857,000 (2011: HK$2,067,000) arising 5 & /857, ooo%%ﬁ(aé:ull%wﬁ%?ﬁ%
on acquisition of the associate in 2007, which is net of HE-_ZTNE- —ETERFT——
adjustment to the investment cost in accordance with profit $+ =] Jtif‘ﬁfr?ﬂ#Zm MR
guarantee provided by the vendor for the years ended 31st BAIECREKEIAR) (ZF——F:
December, 2009, 2010 and 2011. 2,067,000 7T) ' EFt ARBEE R A2

BN o

During the year, the Group was entitled to receive a FERN-AEEAEER-_ZZTLFWE XK
compensation of HK$1,210,000 (2011: HK$668,000) in BMENAEREXGRAA ([EHE])—
cash from the vendor in the acquisition of an associate, ZMEHWE,210,0008 T (=ZF ——
Artchief Industries Limited (“Artchief”), carried out in 2007. F:668,0008 L) e ME -FHMERE
The compensation represents the shortfall of the profit ﬁ%@i"&_?——i‘i—_ﬂ =+—H81t%F
guarantee of Artchief for the year ended 31st December, E(ZE—F :HEZ=-F—ZTF+=A
2011 (2011: year ended 31st December, 2010). The =+—HLFE)BFRE ZTE%%%E 2
compensation was set off with the corresponding goodwill IR E A 2 AR 2K e -

arising on the acquisition.
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18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continueq) 18. — ZEZBNTZ2EHE (é‘%"g)
The directors of the Company reassessed the recoverable ARREER T —Z—F+=ZA=+—
amount of the cost of investment in Artchief as at 31st HEHFGEREREZIRER AR 2 A
December, 2012 with reference to its decrease in revenue TR EPELETERETERMM SR
for the past few years and its loss for the year which were FRAMEBERNBEEF 2 WD
mainly due to the keen market competition of the electronic M B FANEER TRARIRBERE
products, and were of an opinion that an allowance of 857,000/% T °

impairment of HK$857,000 should be provided.

The summarised financial information in respect of the RERPLEER AKEMBFBHE AR
associate held by the Group at the end of reporting period HHRERBEHTMT

is set out below:

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Total assets BEERE 3,899 4,055

Total liabilities BEBE (645) (589)

Net assets BEFE 3,254 3,466
Group’s share of net assets of associate 2N @ 2 15 B & A 7

BEFE 1,627 1,733

Revenue W &= 14,026 27,844

(Loss)/profit for the year FE(HBE),%F (212) 10

Group’s share of result of KEBHE—KEGE
an associate for the year RAEFEEE (106) 5
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unlisted shares, at cost
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Amounts due to subsidiaries

Less: Allowance of impairment

19. ff B A Al =

FE MR - AR
& Us Bt /B 2 A SRR
J& A< BfY B8 2 B 3K IR

B

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. Accumulated

allowance of impairment for amounts due from subsidiaries
of HK$620,870,000 (2011: HK$620,870,000) had been
recognised up to 31st December, 2012 because the related

recoverable amounts were estimated to be less than their

respective carrying amounts.

Details of principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 38.

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

Available-for-sale investment comprises:

Unlisted securities:
Equity securities

20.

FLmESH:

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
53,150 52,721
620,870 620,870
(55,183) (30,225)
618,837 643,366
(620,870) (620,870)
(2,033) 22,496

U () M B AR RBAEEE T
STERBREREE -ARABTKRES
BEORESAZERE BHEZD
——F+-A=t+—HEHRBEKRHMEA
Bl 3R I8 2 2 51 R (B # #5620,870,0007% 7T
—Z——£:620,870,000/8 7T ) °

T EMB R RIS N ESS

AHHERE
AHEERERRE:
The Group
A5
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TET
69 69
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20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT (Continued) 20. O HHERSE (££)

This represents a 1.21% (2011: 1.21%) interest in unlisted HT—RKREBFMK S 2 FA B BT
equity securities issued by a private entity incorporated in 1TIELETEARB A Z21.21% (ZTB——4F:
Hong Kong, which is engaged in provision of computer 1.21% ) i - Z B BT E S IREE KM
technology services in Hong Kong. This investment is R - AR ML E BIZK AN
measured at cost less impairment at the end of reporting BEAE BERARGHAEAEBEATE EBE
period because the range of reasonable fair values A AR EEREAFERREASEM
estimates is so significant that the directors of the Company AE-AEBEERNEHAABELE-

are of the opinion that its fair value cannot be measured
reliably. The Group does not intend to dispose of it in the
near future.

21. CLUB MEMBERSHIPS 21. BT £

The Group
KEE
HK$’000
&

cosT R
At 1st January, 2011 R—_=ZF——&F—H—H 1,380
Exchange adjustments ME X 38 B 9
At 31st December, 2011 A St S | 1,389
Exchange adjustments ME 3, 8 B 2
At 31st December, 2012 e e 1 Tl = e N | 1,391

IMPAIRMENT R AE
At 1st January, 2011 RZE——F—H—H 4
Impairment loss recognised for the year FEERZREEE 122
Exchange adjustments bE 5 38 B -
At 31st December, 2011 R-ZE——F+=ZH=+—H 126
Impairment loss recognised for the year FEBRAEEBIE 50
Exchange adjustments [E 5 P& -
At 31st December, 2012 R-E——FE+=-A=+—H 176

CARRYING AMOUNT BREE

At 31st December, 2012 R-E——FE+=-A=+—8H 1,215

At 31st December, 2011 RZE——F+=ZA=+—H 1,263
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21.

22.

CLUB MEMBERSHIPS (Continued)

Club memberships are stated at cost less any identified
impairment loss. For the purpose of impairment testing
on club memberships, the recoverable amount has been
determined based on fair value less costs to sell which
represents the second-hand market price less cost of
disposal.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLE

Convertible notes receivable JFE Uk AT R A 2R 4R

On 29th December, 2012, Express Fortune Limited
(“Express Fortune”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and Jolla Oy, a limited company incorporated
in Finland, entered into a convertible bond agreement,
pursuant to which Express Fortune subscribed 2,986
convertible bonds at price of Euro 67 per bond, amounting
to a total consideration of Euro 200,062 or HK$2,050,000.
In accordance with the convertible bond agreement and
a letter of confirmation for extension of expiry date of
exercises, Express Fortune is entitled to convert such
bonds into 2,986 new ordinary shares (each bond entitles
to subscribe for 1 ordinary share) of Jolla Oy at any time
before 22nd February, 2013, together with an embedded
option to further subscribe a maximum of 11,944 new
ordinary shares at exercise price of Euro 67 per share of
Jolla Oy. The issuer, Jolla Qy, is entitled to redeem the
debt instrument, with respective interest, after 1 year
from subscription of the convertible notes receivable. The
principal activities of Jolla Oy are software development,
software sales and distribution, equipment design and
manufacturing, marketing and sales, investment and
consulting. Further details are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 18th February, 2013.

21.

22.

e (E)

BT E AR AR AT 2 R R E R 1R 5
Rl EMERERRER  TRESE
BAFEREERAEE TR =_FmH

FE UL AT i R R 1B
The Group
AR

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
THExT FAT
2,050 -
RZE——F+-_A-+hBH REER

AR ([RE]  ARRZE2EWEB AR ) H
Jolla Oy (—RREBHEMERZLZBERA
AR AR ESHE Bl RERE
D& H67RUT 2 B 1% R 82,9861 A] #2 ik
&% - 48 {8 £200,0628 7t 52,050,000
BT BIBAIRRESHER —HEEST
FRHHEZRRAL REEER-_Z—=
FZAZTZHAENRHEEBRZEES
/2,986f% Jolla Oy¥TE@BR (BMHEFE
HRE-RTER)  ERMA RERE
A& Tk Jolla Oy 67T 2 1T B
—SRERZ11,44RFTE BB FITA
Jolla Oy E N R U AT IR ZIR B —F
B R S EEER T A - Jolla Oyz £
BEBRFAL HERDHERG Rt RE
ERE TMEHEREE RENER-H
tHEEENARRBHA-_T—=6_A4
TNBZAMA-
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CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLE (Continuead)

Unless previously converted by Express Fortune or
redeemed by Jolla Oy, the convertible notes receivable
carries at a fixed interest rate of 10% per annum with a final
maturity date on 31st December, 2015.

The directors of the Company are of opinion that the fair
value of embedded derivatives of the receivables including
the conversion right and embedded option to further
subscribe shares are minimal at the date of the subscription
and the end of the reporting period. Accordingly, they are
not recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The value of the host contract approximates to
the total consideration on subscription and subsequently
measured as loan and receivables at amortised cost.

On 18th February, 2013, after issue of requisite notice of
conversion of all the convertible bonds into 2,986 ordinary
shares and exercising the option to subscribe 11,944
ordinary shares of Jolla Oy, Express Fortune subscribed
an aggregate of 14,930 new ordinary shares of Jolla Oy
at a total consideration of Euro 1,000,310 (equivalent
to HK$10,232,659). All these acquired ordinary shares
represent approximately 6.25% of Jolla Oy’s enlarged share
capital after a series of Jolla Oy’s fund raising activities
which are expected to be completed in March 20183.

INVENTORIES

Inventories comprise finished goods in:

BBEERD
I

Mobile phones business
Mining business

22.

23.

FEKWABRRER (&)

BRIELBTE W REER S Jolla OyfE E -
% Bl FE U AT 2 AR AR IR E E R R10%
e BRKIBHBEAE-_ZT—HE+_A
==

ARAEERA BRERENE—FR
BRI Z M A RBRRER Z B YR AR
ARPTTETRAZAFERRERRZ2HY
RERYBMARE - Qi EAERNESE
MBERRKRER - TENZEBERRBEZ
RRERE ERREERAUAERNE
YRR ARG E -

RZE—Z=F_A+NB RELETE
2 FR Al IR (E % AB2,986% Jolla Oy i@
Mg B i R AT AT R B8 11,9448 Jolla
OyERBR v REREBHAZNERNE K
iR R A 14,9300 Jolla Oy#T T @AY - 48
K& A&1,000,3108% 7T (FH% 710,232,659
HBIT) o BB B Wi MR AEE R Jolla Oy
EHR - =F=-ARK—EREEE
&) 1% 2 Jolla Oy#E 48 K% X 416.25% °

ﬁ A
FEREEKSR:
The Group
7 8

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FHET FET
31,603 132,365
1,272 -
32,875 132,365
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23. INVENTORIES (Continued) 23. B (&)
Included in the cost of inventories sold for the year ended Eapa T e e U e
31st December, 2012 were write down of inventories ZEETFREKA BB 52,346,000
with an aggregate balance of HK$2,346,000 (2011: BIL(ZZ——4:5944,0008 L) 217
HK$5,944,000), and recovery of write down of inventories E OB LA K /B A B] & 3R (B 3% 00 M B )
of HK$2,388,000 (2011: HK$6,162,000) which was caused ZTFE#2,388,0008 L ( —F——4:
by the increase in the net realisable value. 6,162,000/ 7T ) °
24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24 EWE 5 IR K H At FEURER =X
The Group
RE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade receivables JEUE FER K 24,359 30,066
Less: accumulated allowance B BETREHE (17,431) (14,083)
6,928 15,983
Value-added-tax receivables JFE g 38 (B R 4,383 2,756
Rebates receivable JfE U [B] FN FRIA 7,277 11,988
Prepayments to suppliers TR JE P 3R I8 11,515 16,335
Other receivables and deposits HAth W BR R M iR & 18,090 15,962
Less: accumulated allowance B RET R (3,155) (3,130)
Trade and other receivables EWE ZERR K

H fth & U BR K 45,038 59,894
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 24, EIWEBE SRFAZ R HMEIWIRR (42)
The Group generally requests for full prepayment from its NEB-—RERKESGREENEEHIE
trade customers but it also allows certain trade customers BR4ETETFESELP=1TZN+tHZ=
a credit period of 30 to 90 days. The following is an aged EH -RNERMALEERAZERESER (2
analysis of trade receivables (net of allowance) presented HMBBE)IZBREQHE2YN 2R DT E
based on the invoice date at the end of reporting period: Jhes

The Group
AEH

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

0 to 30 days TE=+H 2,420 11,412
31 to 90 days =+—&EA+AH 707 2,438
91 to 365 days A+—ZE=BXTHH 453 2,133
Over 365 days BE=—Em/,THaH 3,348 =
6,928 15,983

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses BENEIRHEPA AEBESTHEER
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines its Pz EEEE REATEERZE W TH
credit limits. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed BB TFTEEPZRE BEAEBERNILE
periodically. Majority of the trade receivables that are neither BTG K0 BE AR B EI IR AR B B 2 FE UL
past due nor impaired have no default payment history BRI EE R LB =RAELRR T

and good credit rating under the Group’s internal credit
assessment.
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group does not hold any collateral over its trade
debts. The following is an aged analysis of the carrying
amounts of trade debts that were past due at the end of
reporting period but for which the Group has not provided
for impairment loss because management are of the opinion
that the fundamental credit quality of the customers has not

deteriorated:

Less than 90 days past due wmEI LR+ B

Over 90 days but less than 180 days BmEANTHERBA
past due —BNA+H

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts in
respect of trade and other receivables

Balance at beginning of year F R

Exchange adjustments e A B

Impairment losses recognised FARRZAEEE
during the year

Amounts recovered during the year FAUE Z R

Balance at end of year FIRtERR

24. BIWE 5 R RHEMEWERR (&)

AEBEYERESERFETAERR -
ATARERPEEACBHERERE
RABFPZEAFEEZI RBIEMER
AEBYEFHREBREREBEZESER
Z BREE RR e DT

The Group
A Em

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TET
3,127 13,850
453 2,133
3,580 15,983

REZEE

The Group

rEH
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
17,213 17,718
52 136
3,321 -
- (641)
20,586 17,213
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts in
respect of trade and other receivables (Continued)

The Group recognised impairment loss on individual
assessment based on the accounting policy stated in
Note 3.

Included in the above allowance for doubtful debts in
respect of trade and other receivables is a provision
for individually impaired trade and other receivables of
HK$20,586,000 (2011:HK$17,213,000) with a carrying
amount before provision of HK$23,934,000 (2011:
HK$17,213,000).

The individually impaired trade and other receivables relate
to debtors that were in financial difficulties or were in default
in both interest and/or principal payments and only a
portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash at banks earns interest at floating bank deposit rates.

The cash and cash equivalents of the Group are mainly
denominated in RMB and HK$, which are the functional
currencies of the relevant entities of the Group. Included in
cash and cash equivalents at 31st December, 2012 is an
amount in RMB of approximately RMB71,824,000 (2011:
RMB63,185,000). RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies.

24,

25.

26.

FEU B 5 BRI H A B AR (42)

BB W B 5 R R A e W SR R AR
BREZ2E (&)

AEBREWMESM L 2 & 5 B TR A
R FHE 2 BE R -

Filph R U E SRR R E A KRR 2 R
FREBELEXEEANREZERE HK
3K K2 HoAth [ Y BR 51 2 B 520,586,000 7T

—ZT——4F:17,213,0008 70) ' BEE A
BF T {8 /523,934,000 T (T — —4:
17,213,000/ 7T ) °

B B R E 2 e 4 E 5 AR K S H At e e B
Fop R AF B RESIERFE R R
TR ERHA - FEHIE 7] U B 8 R K
Z—&D e

FEE L o B 2 B 3F 422 6 M AR 2R 2 RR IR

BHESEER THERAREREER-

RERAEEEY

RITM ST BRIT R EHREIA L. -

AEBZASRBASEFENIENLSR
ERZIBEEEARB BT

EE5@
B-RZE—ZF+=ZA=+—H '8
RESZEVMEEARBSBOAR
#71,824,000L (T ——F: AR¥
63,185,0007T) - AR TSEH LB A
ftb 55 o

LA -
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27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 27.

The following is an aged analysis of the trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of reporting

period:
Trade payables: BB SRR

0 to 30 days TEx=+H

31 to 90 days =+t—=h+H

Over 90 days Bi®h+A
Rebates payable FERT BRI FRIE
Prepayments from customers BFEIEMFKIA
Other payables and accruals HibENEBER R ETER

28. OTHER BORROWINGS 28.

Other borrowings, secured HMEE BHEA

At the end of reporting period, the Group’s other
borrowings were pledged by 100,000 tons of minerals
reserve (2011: 100,000 tons), carrying at a fixed annual
interest rate of 8.47% (2011: 8.47%) per annum and
repayable within one year (2011: within one year).

At 31st December, 2012, the Group did not have any
banking facilities.

At 31st December, 2011, the Group had total banking
facilities of approximately HK$24,600,000 of which had not
been utilised and were guaranteed by the Company.

FE S B 5 BR & H t FE 43 AR =X

REBMEEB RN ESHRFIZERA
25 ZREDTWT

The Group
&
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tz BT
411 1,463
234 128
157 305
802 1,896
22,550 76,291
10,683 9,615
19,011 18,074
53,046 105,876
Hibfg &
The Group
&

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
15,374 15,250

RERBLEER AEBHBEEN

100,000 BEEME (=T — — F:

100,000M8 ) {E K 1§ + 1% [E & & ) E8.47%
ZE——F:847% )T B AR —FNR
—E——F —FRN)EE-

R-_E——F+-_A=+—8B K&EEW
EAAIRITRLE -

NZTBE——FE+-_A=+—H8 K&EHFH
R1TRLE 40 524,600,000/ 7T B RERTT
BEE M ARB) AW A ARQ A ER
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29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. IR 7
Number of
ordinary shares Share capital
ZERHE B A
2012 2011 2012 2011
’000 '000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TR Tk TER AT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREE010B T LRk
Authorised EERAE 1,000,000 1,000,000 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid EETRBRBARA 821,663 821,663 82,166 82,166
30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 30. URMBERARZR S
The Company adopted a share option scheme on 14th ARRARZZEEMF-ATMAKRMA—IB
January, 2004 (the “Scheme”) which was effective on 26th BEARREET 2 ([5H8l]) - Zet2 R —ZEZ Y
January, 2004 and will expire on 26th January, 2014. The F—A-+RNEHERT BN _ZE—OFE—
primary purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives to A+ AEmM-FEZEZEENARE
directors, eligible employees and other qualified persons EeR Y AREFERBRZDEH K EE
who in the opinion of the board of directors has made or will HEBRSEBRERMZES 2 &KE
make contributions which are or may be beneficial to the EREMEEEALLL TIEE-

Group as a whole.
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company may,
subject to certain conditions, grant to any directors,
employees, suppliers, agents, customers, distributors,
business associates or partners, professionals or other
advisors of, or consultants or contractors to, any members
of the Group or any associated companies who in the
opinion of the board of directors has made or will make
contributions which are or may be beneficial to the Group
as a whole, options to subscribe for shares in the Company
at any price but not less than the higher of (i) nominal value
of a share, (i) the closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange on the day of grant, and (i) the average of the
closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant
of the options, subject to a maximum of 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, (i)
the total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in
time, and (ii) the number of shares issued and to be issued
in respect of which options granted and may be granted to
any individual in any 12-month period is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time.

Options granted must be taken up within the time period
set out in the offer letter and upon payment of HK$1 for
each lot of share option granted.

At 31st December, 2012, there were no outstanding shares
in respect of which options had been granted and remained
outstanding under the Scheme (2011: 8,246,000 shares
representing 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
that date) as a result of all the options were lapsed during
the year.

30. MR BERNRZRS (&)

RIBETE EF TIREZRSIT ARRE
FAREFER/HAREREN S BIF
HEEIEHBRKATEEBR ERZ AR E
TAXERBIREMBHERRZES &
E-ftEm RE TP OHE XHH
BARBH EXBEENEMER  BAA
AN R T AR ERERRBBARRFRK
2 BEE  ERBER TS LROKNE
1B (iAo R B B B XX B 2 W T (B
K (iinfe o BERBAER B A A AER
FHEBRXAFHEmEZRSE M
BRhzBEREARBZBRNBBEZZUR
RAEITHEBEITRAZ10%R

ABEARRBBRE LM (VRIBFTE T
BRI RE 2 BB AR BB TREBH
RRBUEMAIEEE BTN 210% » K (i)
AERMBEAR+—EABRBRERLD k&
BB Z AR D BT RS EITRMNE
B TRBEARBHEREED BB
Z1% °

BIREAR ZXRIFARIZBEART X
BEW YARBEARRRE2BEREST
XMBTZER-

R-FE——F+-_A=+—H BREI
BREERFARZ - Bt ERIRTE
ERBEMDARKRITEBRE 2 HBED %
TR (ZF — — 4 :8,246,0000% * {5 A&
RANZABETRGO Z1%) °
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 30. MRt AERNIRZRE (£)
(Continued)
The following table discloses movement of the Company’s TRXEEHE_ZE——FK T ——5%F
share options held by employees and consultants (including +_A=+—"HULEFEEERER (S
directors) during the years ended 31st December, 2012 and EE)EFEANGBRE S ZE:
2011:
Exercise Outstanding Forfeited Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding
Date of Exercisable price at during at during at
Name grant period per share 1.1.2011 the year 31.12.2011 the year 31.12.2012
R=B-—-% RZB--F RZIB-ZF
=HisH ===t +ZA=t+-H
a8 BEAH e BRTHE o R AT FRRK e R AT FREN ief R AT 1€
HKS
B
Category I:
-8
- Directors 7.5.2007 7.5.2007 10 6.5.2012 1.29 2,950,000 - 2,950,000 (2,950,000) -
-E= ZETtF “ZT+FRAtRE
TAtA ZZ-ZFRARAE
Category II:
BB
- Employees 7.5.2007 7.5.2007 t0 6.5.2012 1.29 1,546,000 (200,000) 1,346,000 (1,346,000) -
-E& ZRRtE “ZTRt¥TALAZE
AAtH ZZ-ZFHARA
Category III:
£=8:
- Consultants (Note) ~ 7.5.2007 7.5.2007 10 6.5.2012 1.29 3,950,000 - 3,950,000 (3,950,000) -
— R (M3) ZTERLE —IT+FRALAEE
TAtA ZZ-ZFRARAE
Total for all categories 8,446,000 (200,000) 8,246,000 (8,246,000 -

cEVlEEy

Exercisable at the end 8,446,000 8,246,000 -
of the year
REKF{TE
Weighted average
exercise price HK$1.29 HK$1.29 HK$1.29 HK$1.29 -
MEFHTEE 1.29% 7T 1.29%7T 1,298 1.20% 7 -
Note: Bt 5
The Group granted share options to the consultants in return for AEEERTEB CBRE HERBEERAS
their provision of management consultancy services to the Group. REEREARS 2 E® -
No option was granted during each of the two years ended 31st HE-_T——Fk-_FT—F+=-ZA=+—8H

December, 2012 and 2011. EMEFESFTERHBRE-
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31. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 31. EEHIEEE
The following are the deferred tax liabilities recognised and TRARAKEER TFECHERZIELET
movements thereon during the current and prior years: EHaELEES:

Revaluation of
mining right
arising from

acquisition

EWiEsI sz

RIERE

HK$’000

FHET

1st January, 2011 R=_F——F—F—H 105,824
Exchange adjustments B 5 E & 4,484
At 31st December, 2011 R-_T——F+_H=+—H 110,308
Exchange adjustments P A 773

Credit to profit or loss for the year (Note 10) FFAFEEZ (KMEE10) (15,238)
At 31st December, 2012 R-_BE——f+-_A=+—H 95,843
Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on BEPECEFRSENRE BT N\F—
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC A—B UPBENBAGMKIUEFNE
subsidiaries from 1st January, 2008 onwards. Deferred KZIREBBIEMH AR AEEFBE
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated NEHPRANBRAR R af 2 EEYE
financial statements in respect of temporary differences B 2= %8 4946,557,0008 T (Z T — —F:
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries 54,375,000/ 7T ) Z # OB fE - B K AT RE
amounting to approximately HK$46,557,000 (2011: RAI RARRE O TR Z5E WL EREGFRE
HK$54,375,000) as the Group is able to control the timing TR ZE L E AT IR R TR T &

of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is e

probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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32. OPERATING LEASES 32. KEMAXN
The Group as lessee KEBERAEA
During the year, the Group made minimum lease payments FRN ANEEREKQEROYT M Z2HIK
of approximately HK$5,123,000 (2011: HK$5,931,000) € 475,123,000 T (=T ——%F:
under operating leases. 5,931,000/ 7T ) °
At the end of reporting period, the Group had commitments RERBEER KEBERET A HER A
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable Nk RN R b i i k=t JE Y- b]
leases in respect of rented premises which fall due as CARFERSHAERNT
follows:
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Within one year —F R 3,755 3,666
In the second to fifth years inclusive FE_FEERF
(BiEEREMT) 3,360 3,326
Over five years REMNE 873 1,221
7,988 8,213
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the KEHNNREAEERETHAED
Group for certain of its office properties, retail shops and ¥ ZEEMES ARMEEMNZES -
common areas in the mining site. Leases are negotiated “HREEHER —ZE2+=F(ZF—%F:
and rentals are fixed for terms ranging from one to thirteen —E+=F)EHERREE-

years (2011: one to thirteen years).
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33.

34.

35.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31st December, 2012, the Company did not have any
guarantee to bank in respect of credit facilities granted to
its subsidiary (2011: HK$24,600,000 of which had not been
utilised).

At 31st December, 2012 and 2011, the Group had no
contingent liabilities.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding as at 31st December,
2012 not provided for in the consolidated financial
statements were as below:

Contracted, but not provided for
— leasehold improvement —HEEE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. Under the rules of the Scheme, the employer and
its employees are required to make contributions to the
Scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the Scheme is to make the
required contributions under the Scheme.

33.

34.

ERIA - BRFHREE

35.

HREE

R_E——F+_A=+—HB A~Aa
BERENBARESZEEREMRITR
HIER ( ZF——4F : 24,600,000/ 7T 15 A&
BA) -

R R e = el
B AR E I BT R AR B

BREIE
R-B——F+_A=+—BUIRREGE

MBHRRFTRBEEZRENE R AEN
=

The Group
rEE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TET
1,693 =
R K 1E Al 5t 8

AEERMARACEREREERF T
REEFE ([FH8]]) B2 EBERX
ABFI2ESBAKEEEIRTA IR
BRI BRERERBRBEARAAE
2R EE IR NREBE S8 2
—REAREFEMERREMRR
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35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (Continued) 35. RRERIFTE (&)
The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are NEBEFH B AREE Y AR HEK
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme HEEHEREEERBANERIKE 3%
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries ZMB AR BZRHFEKA 2 EE L XK R\Z
are required to contribute a fixed rate of payroll costs to BRABHEEET . ARBEIIEHES -
the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The NEBEZERBANEI 2 —FEAE
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement HIEEMHI-

benefit scheme is to make the specified contributions.

36. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 36. BBEALTZHE
(a) Amounts due to related parties (a) FETEIZEANLZ5E
The Group The Company
N3 NG
2012 2011 2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TEL TR TET

Mr. Lau 3 kE 469 24,869 - 22,977
An associate —REERT 500 500 = =

969 25,369 - 22,977
The balances are unsecured, interest-free and o AERE Tt ERAKRENRE

repayable on demand. & o
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36. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Continuead)

(b) Compensation of key management personnel and

(c)

senior management

The remuneration of directors and other members of
the Group’s key management during the year was as
follows:

36. EEALZHE (&)

b) TEEZENEREREEEHEZ

# B

FREZERAEEEMEIEEEAR
ZMEmT

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHExT FH T

Short-term benefits MEEF 4,980 5,568
Post-employment benefits RN AR 90 (45)
5,070 5,023

During the year, there was one senior management
(2011: one) whose emolument was within
HK$1,000,000 (2011: HK$1,000,000).

The remuneration of directors and other members of
key management was determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

In 2011, the Group received management fee income
of HK$272,000 from Synergy Technologies (Asia)
Limited at the time when Mr. Lau was the common
director. Mr. Lau was retired as director of Synergy
Technologies (Asia) Limited in July 2011. Management
fee was agreed by both parties at a fixed sum or cost
incurred.

(c)

FA —2aREEEKRE(ZZE
—— & :—%)2M<& E”M1,000,000
IR (ZF ——4% : 1,000,000
TT) e

EEREMIEEEASZMEehE
MEESZREMALRREETSB
SRrREE-

RZE——F A K& B MSynergy
Technologies (Asia) Limited ( 2% 4
BERAZARES) HKE272,000/ T
EBEBWRA-BAEER_ZT——F
-+ A BT Synergy Technologies (Asia)
LimitedMEE - ERERINE S K
EESBEXEEZKARE -
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37. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 37. XD Ef#E

Share
Share  Contributed  Translation option Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
R EE B4RS BERE BRERE | @i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THL TET TAR THER THT
(Note i) (Note i) (Note iii (Note iv)
(Fzi) GED (Bt Fiii) (HisEiv)
At 1st January, 2011 R=Z-——%-A—H 392,962 40,948 38,647 4,428 (569,697 (92,812)
Profit for the year FEEN - - - = 10,336 10,336
Exchange differences arisingon  EHREMELZEXZE
translation - - (1,088) - - (1,088)
Transfer of reserve upon RERE LM SRR
forfeiture of share options - - - (105) 105 -
At 31st December, 2011 RZB——F
TZA=t-H 392,962 40,948 37,459 4,323 (559,256) (83,564)
Loss for the year FEEER - - - - (1,367) (1,367)
Exchange differences arisingon = EAZMELERZE
translation - - (24) - - (24)
Transfer of reserve upon REREXAREARE
lapse of share options - - - (4,323) 4,323 -
At 31st December, 2012 R_T-_%
+ZA=zt-H 392,962 40,948 37,435 - (556,300) (84,955)
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37. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continuead)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(i)

The share premium represents the amount subscribed for
share capital in excess of nominal value.

The contributed surplus represents the difference between
the consolidated shareholder’s funds of the subsidiaries at
the date on which they were acquired by the Company, and
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for the
acquisition at the time of the group reorganisation less the
amount applied to pay up the 1,000,000 nil paid shares at the
time of the group reorganisation.

The translation reserve represents gains/losses arising
on retranslating the Company’s financial statement into
presentation currency.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payment
transaction in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
In current year, the amount was transferred to accumulated
losses when the related options were lapsed.

37. AR Af#E (&)

3

(i)

(ii

(ii)

(iv)

B aEERERAHEBLEAEZ X
I8 o

ERABRATBEMBRARFEARARKEER
AZREaRRESEARNAREEETHRE
e EEmMEITRG 2 EmERA LT
A& B E AR E1T1,000,0008% A 41 A% A %
DIRRZ RIBME ZZ5

BERBRERARRNBHRRENLER
Y EHMmEEZ W EE

BRERBEEEEREERRTEZER
B2 NFE FERGAMBEHRRME3H
BN RERNRZRZ 2@ BFRE—
FEE - RAFE - RO NIARERER
HMEERE 25 EE-
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of which
are incorporated with limited liability, at 31st December,
2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WEAREH

Express Fortune
Holdings Limited

Express Fortune

Fortune Shanghai

RELE

Fortune Telecom
International Company
Limited (Note ii)

RESREEEERAR
(i)

Issued and

Place of fully paid
incorporation/ share capital/
establishment registered capital
BETR

BRRE/

R AL R i B AMEX
British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$100
RERUES ERR100% T
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10
Non-voting deferred

HK$5,000,000

(Note )

£ LTRR10ET
BRERELRND

5,000,000 7T

(FzEi)

Wholly foreign owned US$28,100,000

enterprise established

in the PRC
EREKLZ 28,100,000% 7
NEBELE
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000
BB E@AR10,000%8 T

. EEMBAAEHR

—F+-—A=+—BLFE

RZBE—ZFER-_FT——F+_A=+—
HeARRARFEWB AR (B REMEKL

ZBERRA)FBEWET:

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital
held by the Company

KRR
BRTRAEE
EMER 2l

2012 2011
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Nil 100%

Principal activity

TEER

Investment holding

REER

Maintaining the
corporate office

Trading in mobile
phones

EERBE:

Investment holding

REER
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 3. TEMBATER (&)

(Continued)

Proportion of

Issued and nominal value of
Place of fully paid issued share capital/
incorporation/ share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital held by the Company Principal activity
BETR KRR
BRRE/ ERTRAEE/
WEARERE HEMA, R B HMEX HMER 2 Hl TEEEK
2012 2011
Sifa Mining Sino-foreign equity joint RMB1,000,000 50.8% 50.8% Exploration and
ventures established extraction of
in the PRC mining resources
BEEE el v AR #1,000,0007 BIREFARBEEER
FIHEERE
Telefortune (China) Hong Kong Ordinary 100% 100% Investment holding
Investments Limited HK$40,000,000
REHH (FE) E LER REER
REBRAA 40,000,000/ 7T
Top Emperor Hong Kong Ordinary 100% 100% Investment holding
Investments Limited HK$10,000
HEREARAA B Liak REER
10,0005 7T
Zhuhai Reminda Sino-foreign equity joint RMB10,000,000 51% 51% Trading in mobile
ventures established in phones
the PRC
HBERE EREKLZ AR #10,000,0007C BEERYE:

PONRELE
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continueq)

Note (): The deferred shares carry practically no rights to
dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at
any general meeting of the respective company or to
participate in any distribution on winding up.

Note (ii): Fortune Telecom International Company Limited was
deregistered on 25th May, 2012.

The Company directly holds the interest in Express Fortune
Holdings Limited. All other interests shown above are
indirectly held by the Company.

The principal activities are carried out in the place of
incorporation/establishment except for Express Fortune
Holdings Limited which mainly carries out its business in the
PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results or net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

3. TEMBATER (£)

BEEEQ) : RIER(D BER LM AT A B &
Al I B SR U B A R AR IR A
EREHNHFERRAGINEG LRERE
HHNE R 2 ED K R

MiEE() . REEFEEBRARATDER-_F—=
FRAZTHEBABUEM -

7NA &) B B 45 A Express Fortune Holdings
Limited#& 4 » M £ X PR 2 PE Bt i 2
Y BRARBIMERE -

% Express Fortune Holdings Limited= £
EREREEBIN FFEEBHNT
AL, PR A B AR & o

EMB R AR FRRFERNEMEFGEE
BT & 75

ERMINEDESERAEYEAEEER
HEEFBEZARRIENBAR -BESE
RE HIEMHBRARZHBEESEH
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39. PARTICULARS OF ASSOCIATE

Details of the Company’s associate at 31st December,
2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Form Place of
of business incorporation/
Name of associate structure operation
AR
HENR AR ES -S4 Rew
Artchief Incorporated Hong Kong
23 BRIz 0

40. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 26th March, 2013.

39. B ANTER

S X TR T e i
AZARAEEARFHEAT

Proportion of nominal value
of issued capital held
indirectly by the Company Principal activity
EREBERE
ERTRAEEBD ML TEXEK

2012 2011
50% 50% Trading in electronic
products
EEETEM

40. #t B # Ak

MBEBRRER_ZE—=F=A_+BE
E=oHEREENE-



RESULTS

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries
Allowance for trade and other receivables

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
mining right

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
available-for-sale investment

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
goodwill

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
interests in associates

Fair value gain on an embedded
non-option derivative

Fair value loss on convertible loan notes

Gain on disposal of an associate

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Reversal of impairment loss of
trade and other receivables

Share of results of associates

Finance costs

Profit/(loss) before income tax
Income tax (expense)/credit

Profit/(loss) for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

2XE
HERR

£

E A
HERDHKA
THER
HENBLARZEBE
FEWE BRA R

H U R 2 B
PIRRIERR 2R EER

AL ERERR CRERR
AEERRZAERR

RBEAREREICREESR
RADGERRIIETAL

RV EWR S
TREEREBZATFERER
HE-RKBERA
HE—RMBAR W

R E 5 R R At B W 3 2
REBRERD
DEBERAZKE

BMEKK

BREREN,/ (B8)
Friss (Xih) /#H%

FEEF/ (BR)
Eih:

&
KRAHEBA
FRIRFIME R
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Year ended 31st December,

BEZt-A=t-HLEE
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FTEL FTAEL FTHEL FTHEL TR
2,097,593 2,124,237 2,544,120 1,765,862 623,049
(2,063,001) (2,084,030) (2,479,356) (1,704,539)  (609,374)
34,592 40,207 64,764 61,323 13,675
11,262 12,144 16,403 5,322 5,471
(23,092) (24,064) (22,450) (14,885) (10,847)
(29,090) (24,493) (27,308) (31,823) (26,982)
- (4,974) - - -
(47,364) (994) (2,852) - (8,321)
- - - - (60,847)
(632) (217) - - -
(65,105) (184,340 - (2,910) -
(5,725) - - - (857)
5,538 - - - -
- (326) - - -
104 1,437 - - -
_ = = 2 -
- 14,916 397 641 -
(4,036) 32 444 5 (106)
(11,837) (2,330) (11,658) (6,535) (1,340)
(75,385)  (172,302) 17,740 11,140 (85,154)
(3,459) (127) (2,104) 15 15,215
(78,844)  (172,429) 15,636 11,155 (69,939)
(78,719)  (171,983) 14,875 15,922 (43,872)
(125) (446) 761 (4,767) (26,067)
(78,844)  (172,429) 15,636 11,155 (69,939)
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENEE
At 31st December,
R+=A=1+-H
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
FTEL FTAET FTAT FTAET FTET

Total assets BEEE 385,332 698,937 867,381 742,748 585,271
Total liabilities BEBE (190,552)  (385,625)  (421,075)  (263,265)  (171,702)

194,780 313,312 446,306 479,483 413,569

Equity attributable to owners of ADEHER AEE#ES
the Company 189,498 158,254 283,611 314,780 273,806
Non-controlling interests G 5282 155,058 162,695 164,703 139,763

194,780 313,312 446,306 479,483 413,569




EERBR QA
Fortune Holdings Limited
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